
 

Sonoma Valley Fire District 
 
 

Board of Directors Meeting 

November 10, 2020 

 
 

 
  

 

 

 

 

1



 

Sonoma Valley Fire District  
 

Board of Directors Meeting 

November 10, 2020 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
 

  

 

Regular Meeting Agenda ................................................................................................................................ Page 2 

Item 7 Agenda Summary - Approval of meeting minutes 09/29/2020 .......................................................... Page 4 

Item 7 - 09/29/2020 meeting minutes ........................................................................................................... Page 5 

Item 9a Agenda Summary - Station 5 Structural Engineering Report ............................................................ Page 8 

Item 9a MKM & Associates Structural Engineering Report ............................................................................ Page 9 

Item 10a Agenda Summary - Resolution 2020/2021-12 Bidwell Consulting 475 Plan Trustees .................... Page 60 

Item 10a - Resolution 2020/2021-12 .............................................................................................................. Page 61 

Item 10a - Trustees Amendment .................................................................................................................... Page 63 

Item 10a - Bidwell Invoice ............................................................................................................................... Page 64 

Item 10a - Summary of Material Modifications ............................................................................................. Page 65 

Item 10b Agenda Summary – Unmanned Aerial System Program ................................................................. Page 66 

Item 10b - SVFD UAS Application Packet ........................................................................................................ Page 67 

Item 10b - Grant Agreement .......................................................................................................................... Page 77 

Item 10b - Draft SVFD Operations Policy ........................................................................................................ Page 80 

Item 10b - Draft SVFD UAS Operations Manual ............................................................................................. Page 86 

Item 11a - LAFCO Alternate Special District Member..................................................................................... Page 122 

Item 11a - LAFCO Special District Representative Position ............................................................................ Page 125 

 

2



MEETING AGENDA 
SONOMA VALLEY FIRE DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Tuesday, November 10, 2020 at 6:00 P.M. 

Location: Glen Ellen Fire Station 1 
13445 Arnold Drive, Glen Ellen, CA 95442 

  

Due to COVID-19 precautions, board meetings will be open to the public via phone-in conference 
calls only. No public gatherings will be held at this site until further notice. Agendas and board 

packets are available at the following website: http://svfra.org 
 

Join by phone: 1-669-900-9128 

Meeting ID: 914 153 1767 

 
 

1. Call to Order 
 
 
2. Roll Call and Determination of a Quorum 
 

Board of Directors: President William Norton, Vice President John (Matt) Atkinson, 
Treasurer Mark Johnson, Brian Brady, Raymond Brunton, Mark Emery, Terrence Leen. 

 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 
4. Confirmation of Agenda 
 

Opportunity for the Board to reorder agenda items. 
 
5. Comments from the Public 
 

(At this time, members of the public may comment on any item not appearing on the agenda.  It is 
recommended that you keep your comments to three minutes or less.  Under State Law, matters presented 
under this item cannot be discussed or acted upon by the Board at this time.  For items appearing on the 
agenda, the public will be invited to make comments at the time the item comes up for consideration by the 
Board of Directors.) 
 

 
6. Presentations 
 

a) Fire Marshal, Trevor Smith will give a presentation and overview of Sonoma Valley 
Fire District’s new drone program. 

 
7. Consent Calendar  
 

Approval of minutes from the regular meeting, held on October 13, 2020. Action Item 
 
8. Fire Chief’s Monthly Report 
  
 Chief’s activity report for October 2020 
 
 

3



  
9. Old Business 
 

a) Station 5 structural evaluation and improvements.  Former GE Board President Peter 
van Fleet will present the Structural Engineering report and recommendations from 
MKM Associates to the Board for information, discussion and possible action.   
 

10.   New Business 
 

 
a) Resolution 2020/2021-12.  Update of the SVFD’s Deferred Compensation Plan 

(Bidwell) Trustees. Action item 
 

b) Approval of grant funding and the new Unmanned Aerial System (UAS) program.  
Action item 

 
 
11. Other Business to Come before the Board 
 

a) Special District Representative positions for LAFCO 
 
12. Comments from the Floor 
 
 
13. Comments/Reports from the Board 
 
 
14.   Closed Session 
 
 
15. Adjournment 
 

This meeting will be adjourned to the regular Board meeting on December 8, 2020 at 6:00 
p.m. Meeting access will be determined based on COVID-19 restrictions in place at that 
time. 
 
Copies of all staff reports and documents subject to disclosure that relate to any item of business 
referred to on the agenda are available at the following website at http://svfra.org. 

 

4



 

Sonoma Valley Fire District  
 

Board of Directors Meeting 

Agenda Item Summary 

November 10, 2020 

 
 

 
Agenda Item No. Staff Contact 

7 Maci Jerry, Clerk to the Board of Directors 

Agenda Item Title 

Approval of minutes for the regular meeting held on October 13, 2020 

Recommended Actions 

Approve the minutes 

 

 
Executive Summary 

The minutes have been prepared for Board review and approval. 

Alternative Actions 

Correct or amend minutes prior to approval 

Fiscal Summary – FY 20/21 
Expenditures Funding Source(s) 

Budgeted Amount $ District General Fund $ 

Add. Appropriations Reqd. $ Fees/Other $ 

 $ Use of Fund Balance $ 

 $ Contingencies $ 

  Grants $  

    

Total Expenditure $ Total Sources $ 

Narrative Explanation of Fiscal Impacts (if required) 
Not Required 

 
Attachments 

1. Minutes for October 13, 2020 meeting 

 

5



SONOMA VALLEY FIRE DISTRICT 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 
Tuesday, October 13, 2020 at 6:00 P.M. 

 
 
 

1. Call to Order 
 
 President Norton called the meeting to order at 6:01 p.m. via phone-in conference call. 
 
2. Roll Call and Determination of a Quorum 
 

Board of Directors: President William Norton, Vice President John (Matt) Atkinson, 
Treasurer Mark Johnson, Brian Brady, Mark Emery, Terrence Leen.  Director Brunton 
was absent. 

 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Director Leen and recited by all. 
 
4. Confirmation of Agenda 
 

The Chief requested that President Norton reorganize the agenda to allow the opening 
of the public meeting for the Fire Impact Fee and move into item 10a for the presentation 
by, Blair Aas with SCI Consulting.  President Norton and the Board agreed. 

 
5. Comments from the Public 
 

President Norton called to order the public meeting and opened for public comments 
regarding the draft Nexus Study for the Fire Impact Fee.  There was no comments from 
the public and the public meeting was closed.  It should be noted that a public notice 
was placed in the Press Democrat and ran on September 30 and October 7, 2020. 

 
6. Presentations 
  

Blair Aas with SCI Consulting presented a PowerPoint on the key items of the Fire 
Impact Fee Nexus Study report to the Board.  He gave a thorough presentation allowing 
for the members of the Board and attendees of the meeting to ask questions about the 
proposed new fees and the impact they could have on the District. 

 
7. Consent Calendar 
 

M/S/P Emery/Leen approved the meeting minutes from the special board meeting held 
on September 29, 2020   Passed 6 ayes, 1 absent 

 
8. Fire Chief’s Monthly Report 
  

Chief Akre gave the Board an updated on the Glass Fire.  The District had nine (9) 
pieces of equipment on the line with five (5) members assigned as overhead to the 
incident.  He cited the new County All Call system with making a huge difference in 
engine response to incidents since 2017. Chief could not express more to the Board how 

6



proud he was of the Organization, everyone gave above and beyond keeping full staffing 
levels without a single mandatory assignment. 
 
The Chief then gave a brief updated on the District’s budget.  He stating that a collective 
effort by the Administrative Staff enabled lingering items for the budget to be buttoned 
up.  Cash flow has become more stable with the first SAFER grant payment on quarter 
one payroll and the City release VOM reserve funds they were holding on our behalf. 
 
Covid continues to make an impact on Sonoma County.  The SVFD continues to 
practice the highest level of safety precautions to protect not only our members, but the 
community at large. 
 
His final update was on the new Station 8 Type 6 engine.  We are expecting its arrival in 
the coming days. 

 
9. Old Business 
 
 None 
 
10.  New Business 
 

a) Approved Resolution 2020/21-10, with an addendum to include any excluded or 
future apparatus to Figure 14 included on page 29 of the Nexus Study which could 
increase the fee amounts listed in the Resolution.  M/S/P Johnson/Leen, Passed 6 
ayes and 1 absent 
 

b) Approved the purchase of a new SVFD command vehicle.  M/S/P Johnson/Brady, 
Passed 6 ayes and 1 absent 

 
c) Approved Resolution 2020/21-11 to accept grant funding for structural turnouts.  

M/S/P Norton/Leen, Passed 6 ayes and 1 absent 
 
11. Other Business to Come before the Board 

 
None 
 

12. Comments from the Floor 
 
 None 
 
13. Comments/Reports from the Board 
 

Director Emery wanted to express to the Board and the Chief that in doing his own 
research on other fees accessed by the County.  The new Fire Impact Fees proposed 
are a much smaller figure then those of the County. 
 
Director Emery asked the Chief if the District had a policy in place regarding 
accommodations for those SVFD members that go above and beyond to better the 
District, like those who apply and receive grant awards. The Chief informed the Board 
that, yes, the District has a policy in place and he will share it with the Board.  President 
Norton would like to bring this matter up at the next Board meeting. 
 

7



Director Leen asked the Chief to please extend his thanks to all staff members and their 
families for their service and support. 
 
Chief Akre made mention of the upcoming Sonoma County Fire District Association 
meeting on October 22nd.  President Norton is a candidate for Vice President.  The 
meeting will be held via Zoom and the link can forward if needed. 

 
14. Closed Session 
  
 None 
 
15. Adjournment 
 

M/S Norton/Leen with 6 ayes and 1 absent 
This meeting was adjourned at 7:55 p.m. to a regular Board meeting on November 10, 
2020 at 6:00 p.m. Meeting access will be determined based on COVID-19 restrictions in 
place at that time. 
 
Copies of all staff reports and documents subject to disclosure that relate to any item of business 
referred to on the agenda are available at the following website at http://svfra.org 
 

 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
  
 

Maci Jerry 

8

http://svfra.org/


 

Sonoma Valley Fire District  
 

Board of Directors Meeting 

Agenda Item Summary 

November 10, 2020 

 
 

 
Agenda Item No. Staff Contact 

9a Stephen Akre, Fire Chief 

Agenda Item Title 

Receive a report and recommendations form MKM Associates on the structural engineering condition of Fire 
Station 5.  Board discussion and possible action.   

Recommended Actions 
Receive Structural Engineering report and recommendations, Board discussion and possible action.   
   
Executive Summary 

In 2019, the Glen Ellen Fire District Board requested a structural engineering evaluation of the Glen Ellen Fire 
Station 5.  This report has been completed and delivered to the former GE Board President, Peter van Fleet.  
Former President van Fleet will present the findings and recommendations of the engineering report.   

The Board is being asked to receive the report and recommendations, and discuss and possibly take action on 
these recommendations. 

Alternative Actions 

Receive report and recommendations, take no action, request additional information, or take action. 

Strategic Plan Alignment 

This effort is in alignment with Goal 3.  Continue to provide well-maintained facilities, equipment, and 
technology to enable personnel to perform their jobs safely and efficiently. 
 

Fiscal Summary – FY 20/21 
Expenditures Funding Source(s) 

Budgeted Amount $ District General Fund $ 

Add. Appropriations Reqd. $ Fees/Other $ 

 $ Use of Fund Balance $ 

  Contingencies $ 

  Grants $ 

    

Total Expenditure $ Total Sources $ 

Narrative Explanation of Fiscal Impacts (if required) 
The SVFD has reserve funds available from both the former Districts to fund these improvements. 

Attachments 

1. MKM Associates Report 

 

9



 
August 3, 2020 File # 190076 

STRUCTURAL CALCULATIONS 
for 

GEFD Seismic Upgrade 

13445 Arnold Drive 
Glen Ellen, CA 95442 

 

MKM PROJECT MANAGER: 
John Cook 

                
       

 

 
08/03/2020 

CS200803RHB_190076 BUILDING PERMIT SUBMITTAL 

10



5880 Commerce Blvd., Suite 1 Rohnert

DESIGN CRITERIA

CALIFORNIA BUILDING CODE

VERTICAL LOADS

cA 94928 .

2016 ED|TION

Dead

16

75

15

75

10

= w*0.429

= D*0.200

85

(Strength Level)

(Strength Level)

Reducible for
roof pitch and
tributary area.

Live

20*Roof

Roof

Floor

Floor

Deck

Exterior Walls

Exterior Walls

lnterior Walls

LATERAL LOADS

Wind:

Earthquake

(

(

(Conc

(Wood

(

(cMU

(

(Wood

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

psf

psf

psf

psf

psf

psf

psf

psf

psf

psf

psf

psf

psf

100

100

*

Envelope Procedure

Speed: Vurt= 1 10 mph Exposure B

Equivalent Lateral Force Procedure

SDC= D (California Building Code)

\r/ =
L-t-v-

CsW

0.2SosD

GEFD Seismic Upgrade

13445 Arnold Drive, Glen Ellen, CA

Job #
190076

Date
11t20t2019

PE

RHB

PM

JMC

1ol +9
structural engineering

2816-2016-'t2t16

11



l

cyfia (rt* t/*

/b,0 I
/'

/3
ltt'p6

f

f'-f

"on /9t9oYb
Date etP
PE

fclftg 2 of

{r 6

f

otrF$

M€rDUU I

/4ec"
ff:rfna,,Sh trr
J?MIT
9at nts
flili c

6,CI
/,0
/,2
2,2

7,!-

) uAq,/.k t$

t1 .'r

HoaT /i"r€a: //, o'x bb,{g '
7o,ta7 x 1b,Lr/
3,0 Y bV,S'b'

7At-
53b9t9t

2*

Lno/ W = /o/
twelf {we;f =

Ea sf-
Mo*{v

'Iow;rt{
Touer

69 /2
)c /&,0

k /0/ k
5L|,2
1't, G
3/,k'
Q7,9
/0,9

J

)os,b

!',,s*
)

abl l^

W(u-s) = /0/+€9,{t ro"9 = /7/ E

W(e-r,,O)= /0 ltW,*1^/0,g = Q7'/e*

structu ral engineering

12



8,-i I3 /, ??'

FE-o r Ct"tttt

/\*
0,o' ? l,7t

/
a\
ch

\
b;

\NR*b
tF$ $-\N

\D \.

a

f..

.S

q

I

/4,b7

t€,vvt i, /q? 3/ i

t

r.j
.t

sti

o/o'

l

-t
1

I

I

I

2

i
1

I

I

If
-N$

s
I

I
I

o7

I

rl

lr
1t I

12,a7
I

t\
sq

tI\
Sl-

I

I

I

I

I
I

I

t,

4,b7

s
s

/12|b'7

o't t*??/ /€,?7'L

I
I

I

t

I

IlO,O
t

N

l-

13



I

t{-*te grtf N6 Ta#&&

& /,?7 /

Iq

F.
$
R{

I

,b1
Fs
s

8,o',

,b7'

l,o7

rtl

Q,c*1r

e/411(

z"d

NFtu' 
\ G $'

"$$$s

J/

, 6,,,o4o4,tn1'

,- Cvttw lr'd--f+W

A 1efortP

_

6,e1,,

'74b7 I

//,0 '

I l,?3 '11, 4,O'aqd

14



ct r$ \t ht I\ \r
s

\l.
$ \

e s $b 1 + $\ \ ql \ \ N t\

j,3
Y

?
qt

C
I

6 
to

z/
ot

qL
o 

o€
/

F
*e

?

(-

?,
t

N c9 si7
'p sc$ s\ {

I I I I I I I I I

$ \ll $Js s {

( I

/O
, 
fe

7'

15



l

bb nO/ G\

9our# g/oa cerL

s(}

I
F
s
s

f\i-slst
#Paq ? \_:s\

*$t\$
\_l\

$\

It5.71

t 4L,u"lllOt/

-Fs
$ri

a.b1

It?2t

,

t,211 +
-6

9-,77'

16



Q.6'pD

B h)e't /t;is

h)e" / Tr,'h 4 = 6g,(o7'*g',&,7 t

'too* lpprSYb
Date /0 ot9
'Ptb 7 of

nr'f

Fa. d
tt)a / /

fi€ar

Nsrr"$ $is,
a)

=- qLL: loV
=43=35

*&"'

n?+l*
1bZ

t7u
th 2_

.J+ t 17b
b

14,t"

Wo"h V/*79 e7b2 * 5Y,2o

64,b7 >1,/o',Y'4
/&, O V5, ?3' v 4
4, e? Yg,5?' x 3
l,?3xA?3 x U

{"

Tr;A * * 70,G7'> +' =- a/f {rz3o,e'v{t - ffig_
T;6 w-- zlrf k4gs- /fZ 3e,uL

fr;b ,I -- 6a,ol yl,b7l
f8, a/ x3,b7'

W,L r4/" 7sv.+Ll :

= Z+L* 11 9
4zt
31, b

*

w)o t'l.-h* & = 66,0 kg,(rT/ =-
1{tVlY3'&7/ =.

37L #t"
$trr= €;7LX7r = 27,3b

4 = {t t, o { /'/, rhfib x {rg,ar+o,*$ = /Qa.g

W= /0 ys{x/083 = to,P b gz

4+L #
eI

structural engineering

ft,,,r;er At n //S

17



ffi
8*r-o

13445 Arnold Dr, Glen Ellen, CA 95442, USA

Latitude, Lon g itude : 38. 3675756, -1 22.5238365000000 1

le oo7 b
et/zol e
'&$rgg

GaiseHouse.J:-Y-
^-"tt.

Glen Ellen Fire

OSHPD

lvlaund

ao

I

'eg

Map data @2019

olea $
?o:
o ea

a Mound A'Je

Ef

$s.'rgle

Date

Design Code Reference Document

Risk Category

Site Class

1012212019, 1 0:1 6:1 9 AM

ASCET-10

IV

D - Stiff Soil

Type Value Description

Ss

Sr

Sn,ts

Srurr

Sos

Sor

1.5

0.6

1.5

0.9

1

0.6

MCER ground motion. (for 0.2 second period)

MCEn ground motion. (for 1.0s period)

Site-modifi ed spectral acceleration value

Site-modified spectral acceleration value

Numeric seismic design value at 0.2 second SA

Numeric seismic design value at 1.0 second SA

Type Value Description

SDC

Fa

Fv

PGA

Fpea

PGAr,,r

Tr-

SsRT

SsUH

SsD

51 RT

SlUH

51D

PGAd

Cns

D

'l

1.5

0.537

1

0.537

I
1.945

1.904

1.5

0.736

0.729

0.6

0.537

1.O22

Seismic design category

Site amplification factor at 0.2 second

Site amplification factor at 1.0 second

MCEe peak ground acceleration

Site amplification factor at PGA

Site modified peak ground acceleration

Long-period transition period in seconds

Probabilistic risk{argeted ground motion. (0.2 second)

Factored uniform-hazard (2% probability of exceedance in 50 years) spectral acceleration

Factored deterministic acceleration value. (0.2 second)

Probabilistic risk-targeted ground motion. (1.0 second)

Factored uniform-hazard (2% probability ofexceedance in 50 years) spectral acceleration.

Factored deterministic acceleration value. ( 1 .0 second)

Factored deterministic acceleration value. (Peak Ground Acceleration)

Mapped value of the risk coefficient at short periods

18



Job /90 07 b
Dat€ 

11npo1g

*hf,^ 9 of

Gode(s) Used:
Risk Category =

lmportance Factor, I =
Seismic Force Resisting System

Response Modification Coefficient, R =
Max ground acceleration for 0.2 spectral response, S" =

Site Class =
Site Coefficient, F" = Sys / Ss =

Sus =
Ses = 2/3(SMe) =

Seismic Response Coefficient, C" = Ses/(R/I) =

Sr=
Fu=Sy1/51=

Sur =
Se1 = 2/3(SM1) =

hn=

Vt-
x=

T" = Qrfinx =

Tl=
Cs need not exceed the following

C" = Se1/(T*R/I) (for Ta < T.; =
C" = (Se1*T1y(T2"R/I) (for T" > Tr_) =

C" sha// not be less than the following

C. = 0.044SosI 2 0.01 =

C" = 0.5*Sr/(R/I) (for 51 > 0.69) =

Base Shear
V=C"*W=

Vertical Seismic Load Effect
Eu= O.2SpsD =

2016 CBC, ASCE 7-10

IV (CBC, Tables 1604.5)
1.50 (ASCE7,Table1.5-2)

lntermediate reinforced CMU walls
3.5 (ASCE 7, Table 12.2-1)

1.5009 (CBC, Figure 1613.3.1(1)'
D (ASCE 7, Table 20.3-1)

1.00 (ASCE 7, Table 11.4-1)

1.5009 (ASCE 7 , Eq. 11.4-1)

1.0009 (ASCE 7, Eq. 11.4-3)

0.429 (ASCE 7,Eq.12.8-2)
0.6009 (CBC, Figure 1613.3.1(2)'

1.50 (ASCE 7, Table 11.4-2)

0.9009 (ASCE 7, Eq. 1't.4-2)

0.6009 (ASCE 7, Eq. 11.4-4)

16ft
0.020 (ASCE 7, Table 12.8-2)
0.75 (ASCE 7, Table 12.8-2)
0.160 sec (ASCE 7,Eq.12.8-7)

8 sec (ASCE 7, Figure 22-12)
(ASCE 7, 12.8.1.1)

1.61 (ASCE 7, Eq. 12.8-3)

(ASCE 7, Eq. 12.8-4)

0.07

0.1286

0.429 W

0.200 D

(ASCE 7, Eq. 12.8-5)

(ASCE 7, Eq. 12.8-G)

Strength Design Level

(ASCE 7, Eq. 12.8-1)

Strength Design Level
(ASCE 7, Eq. 12.4-4)

(ASCE 7, Tables 11.6)Seismic Design Category (CBC) D

aFp
structural engineering

5880 commerce Blvd., ste 105 - Rohnert Park, cA 94928 - (707) s7g-g1Bs - Fax (707) s7g-71s3 2614-2013-11t13
19



94 crna

Vet* 0'3/
3QY 7, tpt S

l,tsr'a y 0, q o

&€FD

4/; e ??.r p,t,

@qt € f g" CI,(,

too* lgoc 76
l0 o/g

,Wffi /0"

#rr"f > z+'t
hanb > z+?

O,op tAf ? @,apoz

C,#0/#9 z- o,aotg

0,80 t3 b >

P =3,5
frr= 4, {
()/= €,2{

a

Re C wt u bt"rs f /* gmcg b*wO

a
t

lr"L(6-

#*v7,V7{

) 
-> 

/at fei,{ Ce+rr.t r".$e,tl s

*g)
V;Crt4: €rrW:/,oW:O,+ZTWW* s,fr
Base 5'h €*{ ?- g$?gx Z@ I t1 = / /t, k-

Diaptt '"tjr ,V-g = a,+g x l7 I = J3,3L
t4 E-bL* A,+q V20z= \b,bb

0,7 Uu=' 0,?#\A,) fu *

structural engineering

20



w {ii
/

\
rn\'
N

st

-->

"/1'u dr d:

f+

1g*0Tb
/*0/ ?

tl,1*
tl

tr)

JI
i

+

I

N
u\
,g$

\4
N
d

ts

+
T

I

hlz ?, h)
\

h
t

tJ4

I//,*t 12I
:

:

-+L,l.

It 1l"
r{ **rrd -axd'

.a;-

=lhP ,

a=:a-\glr*
J-rsf@

++=a

A
il

:Ed=r cZnre-:

A
@-A
\g!/

.ffi

/e1,, *'l t o\u/
+

T

{}

$
N
N>Nf'l

hN{ ti:il$.)ll
1 !i

t
10,

*/

G
\€_9_/_N

N
**
u
h{li

ii
lt
rl
!l

H- 19t

d
d!L

/w.
|8.r'l'

o -l*E^

* /(er7 V t
TW

-4*--- -*alfr-

Yt"l-#lfS

-z-ExtL-r

a,3-?
n1/

-)

l\

1{

"\

UJ

Rr

I

Fz

.)
-J

4ftt23

i'r

I 6 .{:,' B/ 4221



iates
&mc

*on /9ooVb
o"r" l0 rS
*&w /Z of

6-W Lo a/s @ Ly
(/).= /G otf x0b,{6' ,/' 7s- 'rs{ x ,t,?3' =

ze, hoor /, 6, co7t =

il/: ro rot f / f
{il"r = lb ft { x 7b,ZSt =.

l0b-{
40o

pl{ no a{
*esT-
€as f

roof
tl 00

€e,t
rf

I 7 f t1

/2 Zo Ifi t{.. 1

+ T
/b7 /2I

/{

P2
1-/5

)PF /2,7*

Y63,{r)f - /0/7 fff
pr',i* {z +!,,??)* €,??' r' x '8,V3'r 

B,ozt7,ra) L = /3to
4/?o
€+b0 4 '€,ffu4

/,6a a
bgo#

d+= lG

51

7S x (4,*7 uttt\'fi,+"i' =:lc; >n '/E; ? 7.t, x (Ziruf /1rc)' L :

15 x /s', 7$ (tt,ov * /2,7?)'4_ =

lL,gr.lit *'L (a "tro) =-

P+;t= S;+Sbt/ (o**r)

?z=

P*.

P:,z

=D=.t4/_P7

L/Lp o#= /2,9

/ 3, ru?.,g #

@00#
+sa #

#' 7'tu,zo,7 V

structural engineering

€+@ k-

{= lgbh^, zo z"L

22



Project Title: GEFD Seismic Upgrade
Enjineer:A{KM trojec!!-D; 1eoo7o /?OCAssocides Project Descr:

l@G
printed: 1 NOV2019, 8:15AM

t*= u,ootttl

@@
DESCRIPTION: All Loads 1-2 @ 1.09 E-W

General Beam Properties

Elastic Modulus

Span #1

Span #2

29,000.0 ksi

Span Length =

SPan Length =

10.0 in^2

10.0 in^2

Moment of lnertia =

Moment of lnertia =

100.0 in^4

100.0 in^4

3.0 ft

8.0 ft
Area =

Area =

Span = 3.O t Span = 8.O ft

Apolied Loads Service loads entered. Load Factors will be applied for calculations.

)

Load for Span Number 1

Uniform Load : D = 1.065 k/ft, Tributary Width = 1.0 ft, (w1)

LoadforSpan Number2
Uniform Load : D = 1.879 k/ft, Tributary Width = 1.0 ft, (w2)

Point Load : D = 24.60 k @ 0.0 ft, (Wall 1)

DESIGIV SUMMARY
Maximum Bending =

Load Combination

Span # where maximum occurs

Location of maximum on span

Maximum Deflection
Max Downward Transient Deflection
Max Upward Transient Deflection
Max Downward Total Deflection
Max Upward Total Deflection

12-731k-ft
D Only

Span # 2

4.308 ft

0.000 in

0.000 in

0.049 in
-0.042 in

8.115 k
D Only

Span # 1

3.000 ft

Maximum Shear =
Load Combination

Span # where maximum occurs

Location of maximum on span

0
0

1965
1700

Vertical Reactions Support notation : Far left is #1 Values in KIPS

Load Combination Support 1 Support2 Support 3

Overall MAX|mum

Overall MlNimum

D Only
+0.60D

35.910 6.917

35.910

21.546 l:il[ 
* Z--+Z,hb

@ t7e
-7 5,Q

lJllt'/2s7t'

23



rrriJJr rnl,rtrl' i,rr.r .rr

lrojgct Title: GEFD Seismic Upgrade
Engineer:
Project lD: 190076
Project Descr: /+

General Beam

DESCRIPTION: All Loads 2-5 @ 1.09 E-W

General Beam Properties

File = U:U019\GEFD Upgrade
Soflivare

Printed: 1 NOV2019, 8:1sAM

lNC, 198$2019, Build:12.19.8.31

Elastic Modulus 29,000.0 ksi

Span #1 SPan Length = 46.670 ft Area = 10.0 in^2 Moment of lnertia = 100.0 in^4

D(11_46) D(1r.3)

Span = 46-6,70 tt

Applied Loads Service loads entered. Load Factors will be applied for calculations.
Load(s) for Span Number 1

Point Load : D = 12.460 k @ 0.0 ft, (p2 *rxsl; 2;

Point Load : D = 12.30 k @ 10.0ft, (p3)

Point Load : D=20.70 k @31.330ft, (p4)

Point Load: D = 5.450 k@42.530ft,(p4.7)

Point Load : D = 12.30 k @ 46.070 ft, (p5)

Uniform Load : D = 1.634 k/ft, Tributary Width = 1.0 ft, (w3)

DES'G'V SUMMARY
Maximum

Load Combination

Span # where maximum occurs

Location of maximum on span

Maximum Deflection
Max Downward Transient Deflection
Max Upward Transient Deflection
Max Downward Total Deflection
Max Upward Total Deflection

716.799
D Only

Span # 1

25.202ft

Shear =
Load Combination

Span # where maximum occurs

Location of maximum on span

61

k
D Only

Span # 1

46.670 ft

0.000 in
0.000 in

98.328 in
0.915 in

0
0
5
1

Vertical Reactions Support notation : Far left is #1 Values in KIPS
Load Combination Support 1 Support 2

Overall MAX|mum

Ovenall MlNimum
D Only
+0.60D

65.983 /3.4U6

65.983

39.590

L73.486 --------t>
44.091 2-- t79

@

24



A4KM
dCAssociates
@

Project Title:
Engineer:
Project lD:
Project Descr:

GEFD Seismic Upgrade

190076 tt
Printed: 1 NOV2019, 8:16AM

General Beam

DESCRIPTION: All Loads 5-8 @ 1.09 E-W

General Beam Properties

File =
Soflnrare

Elastic Modulus

Span #1

Span #2

29,000.0 ksi

Span Length =

Span Length =

24.0 ft
3.0 ft

Area =

Area =

10.0 in^2

10.0 in^2

Moment of lnertia =

Moment of lnertia =

100.0 in^4

100.0 in^4

D(5146) D(T.e)

Span = 24-O ft Span = 3-O ft

Applied Loads Service loads entered. Load Factors will be applied for calculations.

Load for Span Number 1

Uniform Load : D = 1.634 k/ft, Tributary Width = 1 .0 ft, (w3)

Point Load : D = 5.460 k @ 16.0ft, (P7)

Point Load : D = 27.90 k @ 24.0 ft, (Wall 8)

Load for Span Number 2
Uniform Load : D = 1.017 Uft, Tributary Width = 1.0 ft, (w4)

DES'G'V SUMMARY
nding =

Load Combination

Span # where maximum occurs

Location of maximum on span

Maximum Deflection
Max Downward Transient Deflection
Max Upward Transient Deflection
Max Downward Total Deflection
Max Upward Total Deflection

Maximum Shear =
Load Combination

Span # where maximum occurs

Location of maximum on span

k-ft 23.439
D Only

Span # 1

24.000 ft

k
D Only

Span # 1

12.923ft

0.000 in
0.000 in
4.966 in

-1.958 in

0
0

57
36

Vertical Reactions Support notation : Far left is #'l Values in KIPS

Load Combination Support 1 Support2 Support3
Overall MAXimum

Overall MlNimum

D Only
+0.600 s = 75,LP

21.237 54.390

21.237

12.742

54.390

32.634

@

25



MKM
dCAssociffi
@

lrojpct Title: GEFD Seismic Upgrade
Engineer:
Project lD: 190076
Project Descr: /("

General Beam

DESCRIPTION: Diaphragm 1-2 @ 1.09 E-W

General Beam Properties

File = Seismic Upgrade

Printed: 1 NOV2019, 8:16AM

rNc. Build:12.19.8.31Soflrrvare
#: KW-06005908

Elastic Modulus

Span #1

Span #2

29,000.0 ksi

SPan Length =

Span Length =

10.0 in^2

10.0 in^2

100.0 in^4

100.0 in^4

3.0 ft

8.0 ft
Area =

Area =

Moment of lnertia =

Moment of lnertia =

.o65

Span = 3.O ft Span = 8.O ft

Apolied Loads Service loads entered. Load Factors will be applied for calculations
Load for Span Number 1

Uniform Load : D = 1.065 k/ft, Tributary Width = 1.0 ft, (w1)

Load for Span Number 2
Uniform Load : D = 1.879 k/ft, Tributary Width = 1.0 ft, (w2)

DESIGN SUMMARY
um lllg =

Load Combination

Span # where maximum occurs

Location of maximum on span

Maximum Deflection
Max Downward Transient Deflection
Max Upward Transient Deflection
Max Downward Total Deflection
Max Upward Total Deflection

12.731k-ft
D Only

Span # 2

4.308 ft

0.000 in
0.000 in
0.049 in

-0.042 in

Shear =
Load Combination

Span # where maximum occurs

Location of maximum on span

8.'115 k
D Only

Span # 1

3.000 ft

0
0

1965
1700

Vertical Reactions Support notation : Far Ieft is #1 Values in KIPS
Load Combination Support 1 Support2 Support3

Overall MAXimum

Overall MlNimum

D Only
+0.60D

11.310 6.91/

1't.310

6.786
6.917

4.150
t 16,?>

172_

+7,7
tgbb'P 4)q,L v/

26



MKM
dCAssocidesEE@

Project Title: GEFD Seismic Upgrade
Engineer:
Project lD: 190076
Project Descr: /7

Printed: 1 NOV2019. 8:16AM

General Beam

DESCRIPTION: Diaphragm 2-5 @ 1.09 E-W

General Beam Properties

File = Seismic Upgrade

Soflware ENERCALC, lNC. 1983-2019, Build:1 2.19.8.31
#: KW-06005908

Elastic Modulus

Span #1

29,000.0 ksi

SPan Length = 46.670 ft Area =

D(5146) D(1r.3)

10.0 in^2 Moment of lnertia = 100.0 in^4

D(2y 7) D(1r.3)

Span = 46-670 ft

Applied Loads Service loads entered. Load Factors will be applied for calculations

Load(s) for Span Number 1

Point Load : D = 5.460 k @ 0.0 ft, (P2)

Point Load : D = 12.30 k @ 16.0ft, (P3)

Point Load : D = 20.70 k @ 31.330 ft, (P4)

, Point Load : D = 5.450 k @42.330ft, (P4.7)

Point Load : D = 12.30k @ 46.670 ft, (PS)

Uniform Load ; D = 1.634 k/ft, Tributary Width = 1.0 ft, (w3)

DESIGN SUMMARY
Maximum Bending =

Load Combination

Span # where maximum occurs

Location of maximum on span

Maximum Deflection
Max Downward Transient Deflection
Max Upward Transient Deflection
Max Downward Total Deflection
Max Upward Total Deflection

716.799 k-ft Maximum Shear =
D Only

Span # 1

25.202ft

73386 k
D Only

Span # 1

46.670 ft

Load Combination

Span # where maximum occurs

Location of maximum on span

6

tn

in

in

in

0
0
5

11

0.000
0.000

98.328
0.915

Vertical Reactions Support notation : Far left is #1 Values in KIPS

Load Combination Support'l Support 2

overall MAXimum

Overall MlNimum

D Only
+0.600

5U.9U3 73.4U6

58.983

35.390
73as6 ---g> #^= l7z44.091 e

6

27



MKM
dtAssoci#s
@

Project Title: GEFD Seismic Upgrade
Engineer:
Project lD: 190076
Project Descr: tg

'General Beam

DESCRIPTION: Diaphragm 5-B @ 1.09 E-W

General Beam Properties

File =

Printed: 1 NOV2019, 8:16AM

1 90076\ENG\CALCS\SC1 0251

lNC. 198$2019, Build:12.19,8.31Softrare
MKM

Elastic Modulus

Span #1

Span #2

29,000.0 ksi

Span Length =

Span Length =

10.0 in^2

10.0 in^2

Moment of lnertia =

Moment of lnertia =

100.0 in^4

100.0 in^4

24.O ft
3.0 ft

Area =

Area =

D(5i46)

634

Span = 24,O ft Span = 3.O ft

Applied Loads Service loads entered. Load Factors will be applied for calculations

Load for Span Number 1

Uniform Load : D = 1.634 k/ft, Tributary Width = 1.0 ft, (w3)

Point Load : D = 5.460 k @ 16.0ft, (P7)

Load for Span Number 2
Uniform Load : D = 1.017 Uft, Tributary Width = 1.0 ft, (w4)

DES'G'V SUMMARY
Maximum Bend lflg = 138.008 k-ft

D Only

Span # 1

12.923ft

Maximum Shear =
Load Combination

Span # where maximum occurs

Location of maximum on span

23.439 k
D Only

Span # 1

24.000 ft

Load Combination

Span # where maximum occurs

Location of maximum on span

Maximum Deflection
Max Downward Transient Deflection
Max Upward Transient Deflection
Max Downward Total Deflection
Max Upward Total Deflection

0.
0.
4.

-1.

000
000
966
958

0
0

57
36

in

in

in

in

Vertical Reactions Support notation : Far left is #1 Values in KIPS

Load Combination Support 1 Support 2 Support 3

Overall MAXimum

Ovenall MlNimum

D Only
+0.60D

21.237 26.490

21.237

12,742 i3:1il*z=+uL
o@

28



iates

N-S te /rUG

Q6rc
roo+ 

1 9a07 {"
Date n/zotg
'wbkbltg "

(r#g /&,+t.r{ x 8{,b7t ='

dtlt,: ffit'toVlbbt :
87,9/aa, ;

/3K //{
+7s f t{
423

/ 9"{g
a r

P$

n6/
,!o,a
r06

v{t
r/r
f

N
/-

\
u(t' I

.t

b

/0,
t@

p'// z,@Tt ftr,
/tf x 9/'d)7/

*o,"wr;
fd t -1t

d') a -*#{p€}
/387
*V9
q""23

3c69 {} $

cr{

ba lb 7,t{* 70,&7 
|

I /3/
6*c
+7e
473

&'v Q3 r t{

/= t1 ltr //

structural engineering

29



MKM
d[Associffi
@

Project Title: GEFD Seismic Upgrade
Engineer:
Project lD: 190076
Project Descr: 40

General Beam

DESCRIPTION: All Loads A-C @ 1.09 N-S

General Beam Properties

Fite = U:\201

Printed: 4 NOV2019, 7:02AM

rNc. 1s.8.31Softrare
Lic. #

Elastic Modulus

Span #1

Span #2

29,000.0 ksi

SPan Length =

Span Length =

10.250 ft
66.0 ft

10.0 in^2

10.0 in^2

Moment of lnertia =

Moment of lnertia =

100.0 in^4

100.0 in^4

Area =

Area =

= 1O-25O ft Span = 66.O ft

Applied Loads Service loads entered. Load Factors will be applied for calculations.

Load for Span Number 1

Uniform Load : D = 1.355 k/ft, Tributary Width = 1.0 fi, (w5)

Point Load : D = 57 ,20 k @ 10.250 ft, (Wall C)

Load for Span Number 2
Uniform Load : D = 2.257 k/ft, Extent - 0.0 ->> 53.330 ft, Tributary Width = 1.0 ft, (w6)

Uniform Load : D = 3.069 k/ft, Extent = 53.330 +> 56.330 ft, Tributary Width = 1.0 ft, (w7)

Uniform Load : D = 2.893 k/ft, Extent = 56.330 ->> 66.0 ft, Tributary Width = 1.0 ft, (w8)

Point Load : D = 32.60 k @ 66.0 ft, (WallA)

DES'GTV SUMMARY
Maximum Bending =

Load Combination

Span # where maximum occurs

Location of maximum on span

Maximum Deflection
Max Downward Transient Deflection
Max Upward Transient Deflection
Max Downward Total Deflection
Max Upward Total Deflection

D Only

Span # 2

34.015 ft

Maximum Shear =
Load Combination

Span # where maximum occurs

Location of maximum on span

113.726 k
D Only

Span # 2

66.000 ft

0.000 in
0.000 in

333.717 in
-158.196 in

0
0
2
0

Vertical Reactions Support notation : Far left is #1 Values in KIPS

Load Combination Support 1 Support2 Support3

overall MAXimum

Overall MlNimum

D Only
+0.60D

14/.511 113.t26

147.51'.1

88.507

113.726

58.235

30



MKM
d[Associsfies
@

Project Title: GEFD Seismic Upgrade
Engineer:
Project lD: 190076
Project Descr: 4l

Printed: 25 OCT2019, 9:13AM

General Beam

DESCRIPTION: Diaphragm A-C @ 1.09 N-S

General Beam Properties

= U:\20{9\GEFD Seismic

Soflwae rNc, Build:1219,8.31
#: KW-06005908

Elastic Modulus

Span #1

Span #2

29,000.0 ksi

Span Length =

Span Length =

10.250 ft
66.0 ft

10.0 in^2

10.0 in^2

Moment of lnertia =

Moment of lnertia =

100.0 in^4

100.0 in^4

Area =

Area =

D(2.893)
D(3.o6gt F--s F r

fffi

Span = 1O.25O ft Span = 66.O ft

Applied Loads Service loads entered. Load Factors will be applied for calculations.

LoadforSpan Numberl
Uniform Load ; D = '1.355 k/ft, Tributary Width = 1 .0 ft, (w5)

Load for Span Number 2
Uniform Load : D = 2.257 k/ft, Extent = 0.0 ->> 53.330 ft, Tributary Width = 1.0 ft, (w6)

Uniform Load : D = 3.069 k/ft, Extent = 53.330 -->> 56.330 ft, Tributary Width = 1.0 ft, (w7)

Uniform Load : D = 2.893 k/ft, Extent = 56,330 -->> 66.0 ft, Tributary Width = 1.0 ft, (wB)

DESIGN SUMMARY
Maximum Bending =

Load Combination

Span # where maximum occurs

Location of maximum on span

Maximum Deflection
Max Downward Transient Deflection
Max Upward Transient Deflection
Max Downward Total Deflection
Max Upward Total Deflection

Vertical Reactions

1,222.527k.n
D Only

Span # 2

34.015ft

Maximum Sneai=
Load Combination

Span # where maximum occurs

Location of maximum on span

81.126 k
D Only

Span # 2

66.000 ft

0.000 in

0.000 in

333.717 in
-158.196 in

0
0
2
0

Support notation : Far left is #1 Values in KIPS

Load Combination Support'1 Support 2 Support3
Overall MAXimum

Overall MlNimum

D Only
+0.60D

90.311 81.126

90.311

54.187

81j26
48.675

31



Gffo

j
frl $/

t/ ,? d]- nst a:*;( 4r

6r= 0,+29 wfx
< 0,1 y /,O x,/rf

n

"ou / gaoTb
o^'"tofto/ g
*P/.{9 

lzq-"

8d

(e) v/o 
P ,"t/ g /e 4' o,c, l>/o *Lr/

tdlA

frami"v
/rr
(

d,rb./sn, tV4
Ca*.e l4 

"sCtult {f en€ / jn *tNr €*
E-,,O LO * d{ { e,, ,r t '*
M-J totTr{ (*.ae L

A//aa 4re = 04o =gpa

@) 3/a pt| q urtbltrfuod

4* 4t/ oun-) ltgfi =- 4* a/z

gdc d d, c.

{eu-rL-

Ca.ra 4 w
4t('*-L )

lk,G
nlf
''l.C
#.'

g)4x9€ tu

n/L._) r y

structural engineering

*,fe,.'x" { I /trLry lc UnLn au44 ,

32



,; 
i-r;.'i ti,lfl;-n{ i' ft ; ;: \,.)ilr3 :15 ir?s r

(\
N

'--\
rs
aa)

Ee.2,3nFUlEerqdlauBd I

'crurluapa 1*cu€ *'g
;ur lrepla,iapm az poa'e-i*4raecr fqrsrsg Ja Esgl*.up ?rrE s*4ra-w axw*a7 aq, a1

;:ader q;pa.zco ipxrd :nccr4aol Ic spnxrip €q. m 5FIE6F s JEE-rrFsr idr*q@g' g

56 .iq p*qdppw aq.l6us .ranfar b
-46!rslpqq 7* esF rE g.'pf I uq,W ;:laE si Surue g sq la rwez *;ruslo:r ?.u86 -ts

--'1 ,iqp:adupw aq o1

pa{fir$s.Je,A 6€qr sarqE:r"D }i."rt! *-rn: ;pued at>cdano: rc ri*urd pol-rr,i1d,i1d-gr*
,i;d1 aaq11 ':prad *c'o.e-1,1,i .i-iri-1- :a Es0 "ias:r *i"ra pprrn-g:afi} rnrSe.rqdup -rr3
5nqrlE.l 55aEB:q'i p,u*r{ pc,t &oFsr'$qg j,s fian la y;4T fl lgnba l,} n-#S 3.'j*I Sr3}80-1
!'n3i!otp ql.L{t. lllrtrrJJ ai dg: 5ya uo p*eeq €rt *5 ':<ap.r :s:-cqqs re*qs la*sddy 'g

"q neqt :m;ra$ iq taE npqr mr:rg iu*qmlp1r.$.: 4 rguadg aE_1 "i"t'f 't'iI
*1 q.xa) 5"6g a ql ;naE; :*quai Eurrr*ry ;a;l;r "{:zrz;p : gr:*d6 = gp s-:*q"e' [',iri " 

f ] il
= "r4?l r EJ lE;@rnfpE .fu aaqr ?gF:ad $ aqt iq,l.iru e dm M eqi Nw^ lsDi,r6@ par"tRq'{l
ql ?a*irdqnre iq p*v,rampp- aq Lr"?qr 3aF?3BdEr rlaq: l:uir 1trrrerlrr pslnp{l
iur,1 nsqina5 .re Trlrf-rrj-il7€naq aaql"e6c Ewwu,t p ryzE pur* z*M io1 -,;,

":Gclsrc;pr{rF S:En a{ilsrru[? rcr;: 6 rpmddgvas'5d*Eqdsip pruad pcu:rurs
pco.r!..roJ1-i-;'p+r='nc*urrra$.ai:qr:+da:oJ'$-f'l,z*;slqarnannb*.!nfgltlllaEo]
larauad rol'ririEjss€r lalI?.p;lDtfl} {IEE:I pEF.t^:llada: xaq3 irn:*r zIqs.M$iI* {tsv
sr,;sl[e]Fpfr.r€'l]q&tra:lnpru::rczpatrnl-peEqilq:le-r:gxdar:eaq';ryE!.t1rlrnno51-;

(a$
*l"eFnog

Pr*
ce8pAtrrf,a
rwpfsvte

)!EJ pr$f ro
rfiPltFr!,rrofi

ullrnfr

I
?

b

G

6
T

ta

*1

.L

:r

in

6
?

t7

{q}
st;qo!qI

F{nd
Fq$q!l
rrlca{l

utE

it/9i

gus

a. i

r*'l i r.a I

gti!

;0!t
e&qr

4ti6t

r,[&e
Jor{ui;
8rr n3

14rQf,DlirNd
$!lt'"l
llnqqi

!ii,-t

5ftt

?j t-t

'h;-r

l, t t

$'t-l

}4SFil
solErqc

tjJ

$t

ml

!!

?*

p0i

iprro
Estllpry$

i lsq?ru:r

.nog+$ug
FirE

Errr{pe1lg

'1, 
" '--. , |., U l '.' fu. .t

$: lsllrir-E.d t'ut jtinlli]
-:i+d-t;r1 tl:i r r:.i 1: -"prl

:?i,)nr1:illr.,]: :q Tls grBi8:l

* !
6 ala?

eil
' -ll
'.!rt

$ art

,3ut_u:rL11

") 
Flfljr?rE siijlcf i:'1Jd4j

1"fii'ftu{lri)):F:Y; m3

li [.-,,.j,:.*1.,-

'''t it-t'i'-'i
t"!
sc?

rs*! i rra*,i
'."i{rl *6.-}.,i

atr

a.6., A, d{rr.:
.!$ pr{i$l { 'J

i'.;._ ;'...;
--: - " i,.- -

,.. l*.,1.. * n
-'*-' 1'' r ; t
. ?1i".

.... qr t*a

nA

i:::::::tt L] ZiA
!*i Uf iffi

^ld' 
AS|J

fl iI 09i;

tt,

&il
nJ gs6

e:'; il.

t; *t DgtL

Y! JL.

t.-
tl:t[:ruJ..1)

' :.,r: 1n :r prual--.1; s1L:r*f i J:J?d

\ 3t(lil.u!'iili)J:tryi la$B)

*d. , *A r-3** !

IIt.
r*)

, @e,'{r*!i - -
.r - f d+*qr)

$
:

t6t

od, It tg t'!rVidlIl

i^a
xt

A.":d

ra

IL
B3t

0rB'
0sJ

rn
0t

0i
Eimt fi00t

;"5 mr osl

t I l,t0l

0{

Yi

3"S
3'4

0r
zi

gtl I
fiint

s1fr
$€
lr

oGst
ngnt

it
L70Er r ffit Et

ii-aklr
n*Pr

It

usl !r
('uksq$t

"$

$t 0"I mc
E'i 9e mq
.,\ld gso

?";
!i"l

s?
0!

0@
{ru

fE
zt

tffi
f';?

l]rlfi
UCIfi ri

ni.

aE i"{
_0r q'4

sg
q'z
{r9
r0

s"i
2'&
!l
0:tfi:c

VeJ *h
rs
ITI

S-r
$^€

['?t
fr?n

E\
9':A

&fr
q".{mET

c'i

:,. I
trt
st

0!9
0tl

,jg
t'z

0t
at

ts6
rzs

itrrrdd.r S r$ -lr1 *.: r, pr u;dt;-:r;
u{}rl.:;Jrfl 1.:uro; €wr'1

€uoddng {r lqlatsd
rrop:orld pue6 !uo'1

f,,il{91:I$

peq w Xqp:rd riiHp*1r {"ue$ &u2std.g 1rg
s
5n0nilqilax+r

tlt6) tl, '9
t^!rysffi,rl

9n ci tEi
e! 9i tut
tid Fso

l1
,t

Ei
it

ms
els

$'ff fl VlS
.\,1. 0"8 Mt? *.". ni'.:

s'*
jl-fi

NLf1*;f,
nh:

'tit
LZ
q7

{Eg
tn€

frffi
F,..i dt

tt
il

qRlLl

*

ty E E eahe'i.J Edspr l3u€# Its t" puE '{t
? * s;'6eli p{ct sl l;Ale.lsd s;Spr^ tJuEd
roorxlsrGr le '1s*c rrl sauEgrno{

ufs+ktp p tqi 6ie*d-s r-er

I
)r

u161
*A

cgEr
!l.t r

i4E
03sI

tozt
9g0i

-ffi cHrl

!€El
E,l lt

El.tr
Sirt

,;0Ea
atat.

{s0i
{?00r

{ssI
u;z L

844{
rrll7

d!\-4

{flq,l
rr,

lIrl,
rqfl r

0;g r
qFbt

s{t
fr'ra
gl{E
naJI

5{1t
tEcr

vtvt
*b.Ft

0$il
ei +r

t't'il
5tsfr

te!r
fl i']r.

sltE
n8r t

t

uF) F}l

:0t

rlil";
t[ nr

txol
g89
gltr
fl&t r

98/
MI

010!
cip

!tDt
itR

*7t:;
tr[i

qEl
0s0t

s'f,t
fnlr

s

ul{l ttl

06
{irs

0r8
cc..

oEs
qL,
0r0t
cfin

[0:;
0il{

gCr
nrn

009
ti,i

0lf
eqt

ai8
fltfr

Lr!U I

'3St

'rtlltrrqdslo €lllE poon ro*c rB*qs llun lEulroof,E"? elgsr
33



Iable 4.2u. .{snrinal Urit $hear citie* for Woor-

)". ]'iqreirr] luit:!ezr cnpacrti*r a2rxil be *{urted i:l acf,ordm.c. !&:& 1J.i rc .d*.
'terxroe-*.-9D allosable rsrii.shea; r:4rar34. and.LF.ff:fgclnragi rsrtresstxsr:e.
?c'r geae.za) ccrsisilrde:t raqniren-euti cee 4-f,.6- .For:per.ifc requireltent:..
** 4.11 .7 .I is,r eood salzisr:a! pur:nl 4i.*px._agar:- SeaSpperdisA fb.r cr%la$lns
rgiI. rlir"g;116g19-

3.. 5ar speci*i a-nd grxde* oifrau:ug 69.e3-tha,r.llsugri*-Fir-1.*:ri o.r Sery[hero
Tirzor*rxed.zcrrirrsZ u:riu :.b*ri c,r4a*iri*: e hxti be deszru:r.iued bt'rauliply:lg
tbe sbulated torrrtasl rsir ebesr :rpac!4 tro' the $pecifc Grnl4 "{Cju;erell:
:lct?r,= ii-iu.J:4)]. a&Ere G = F,pp:i6r GcE:i$ r,l't'ae Salrilg luelb*rSonr
rh* &T/1 i?Fhle l2.i-?AJ. T,re 5,p.*;i5.r r.3m'ifT. Adjn:@Frsu:isior s'lrtl- tlaz.
bdg*atastfus.i-

3-. 3.pg;:xrt siesr Eli-fu*Bs -celue:" {3- ffe biued as tliil eiip :irr fraru"l'E .xi&.
ur,iin:r* ct?:rlgx lees -&irz, cn eqT*: ta itf i st ine cf &brreaticis. *:rd pa:r:?
3ti;f'+t85" r,.ahea jx disp.hrs;:si {,tx!€.t-gct?d s"dtb si:les 059 as i-p\1 p:g"v*ad
parels- ltrIhex {-p1y or !.gly pgz'n*dpaaeh or csu3a.-rire pale!: arerns.ed- (i.
i"sluer shnli b€pgr:gitfedt* ba zrufripfi*d try 3.1.

4- Ba,*re :::ni.:ru!E (s.a!mf {yf tle Aaru:lg is 4}eoral tssa 1 *?i, at nr*e,:f t;lti*"a-
ri*r:- 6" i'alirer sball be mnlapled :oy S.$.

"5" liapkr*gne r*eistaa':* dcryel:de *B {bF dir€r*os af c,laxnt*ul pxnei ";ai:rawihwi;F*n :ohelnadi.;ag. Crreltou as"* d:.rerr.ry*.*f frasgi:l.e *rmb*le, a:rd::
rode?a.gEflt r'f $e :rsrai oimtains.-

r-faDtc Diaphragm*
Structura I Fan el Diaphragmsa;"'e4-F

s
\J
--.{

\

i!;# l:a'liryr l, : t rjl,l q;r"l.ra,fl i t '? i

fhinum
tloafirdtYrdfi

of lftt€d Facad
Sr*orted
Etlges and
Boundarlr

fnJ

3
L

I

t
5

3
"),

3

qJ-
2
5

2

2
fJ

2
3

[tin-unsm
Xomiral

M
Thic*ness

(in-l

5itff

3,,',9

l5r-?e

511E

3rlE

7/10

15.E:

15,'33

rgr3z

Frnimurn
Fastener

Penetra6on
in Frry*ng

tir.l

f -i"/4

1 -:slg

t'^li

1-U4

1-e,'g

1 -llt

Cnrnrsen
f{ail S.ize

ild

*d

,:E4

tud

: n-{

Sheathing Grade

Stru€tural I

Sleathirqg ard
SirlgFFloor

Cafi* f & ti- lrrr:.,:'ru ;:i,..:

F;irsrl "l *i nLi. l)llpr::r,-
ijiier{&r :1:,1 i);f,:di,ji r.ri

Y:;tn'iit"r'2,

.:rr 
', r

(crr 5

lrll

tr.:'

tls*x J*E d; (jc':rri"iir'l c'i:s:

.Rec'ti l;:i.r.t.r: l];r:l.ilrl rr:.

Fsaxrin3.

Coi. I
lrtl

0

r.- t
Jrla

I

(o)

{{*.\.ar.*.r ^.'
r;v-... *s":

4-5
3.5

&"3
5n

Cases 
"J,a,5,6

GrYs,

os€l
25[' B-g

FLY

4-53to

r*.fi

s.,il
x.a
B,O

4:JCJ

4:89
8.0 4"n

4-0259

{
380 4'F

4_O

6_0.jaa 1fr

5-5fl,Frt3fr
4S0

{asr'* I l(*l.f *!:ti 3.1) us

Pai,'rl 1 I it i r.l;s Pr'i6i,:*d ir,ui r
ri: f r:rie il g

CMI

.. l{a t

.,i,Y-.
l.

!

, ^-... l
*ar:;"p" r. -

i@.f .!*-"'

Cs*w't

al

A

& in- Nail Spa*ing at diaphragm haundarie<

,Case'l

G*Ys

osB
530 S"O

PLY
?-0

S.5 t- "fr

1,t
€!. e

t.{
l?

F7A
649
300 a"o

6-5
5-5

8"0
V -t4

s-5 6.04fro
510
4gtl 7,.fr 5^5

51

l3
1C

570
a4$

!,,r:n'r i:l:uisl. f)iiiix ti.)n
F*:rfer,:.1r. uizu: ti: 5,up5,ar65

I".o:rg Psncl Dirsti,orl
Farsllcl ul $uppcrt$

Unb'lccked

Gases
?3.iL5.6

Yr
fDm

505
s80

3,50

390

600
670

350
39o

_? 10

3,5&

450
E{5
475
530
5{r5
5An
530
&{to
640
870

ts

& is- t{ail Spacing rt
diaptrrsg,rn boundaries an.d

supoartPd r.anel edoes

Case I

Yr
lot0

f,7,t
7.43

4e€
5X,!

&00
8q5
42{t
475
4{n
52(1

&ca
s7fl
*,{5
7rF
B7n
7,4f)

718
-ntn
Stxl
895

34



y (**,;] 'z= /9,&
CE) 2v T* 4 a //**r e

Prnuir{e .&/a rkd fg

0rru

Fld har/s
'/un,o'- Tcz

3-wc{ &

vtf
rF

H4

tates

Rr*{ ,Dt h

ls/zzq sd{n ''' # r(, * p'r,

a,//o--t,3 Sss 4sc dfl
g(n,9&-t+q): /6,/b

to-O = €o
LF

&d@ +
:?zaf

Vrn{w*}= o ,

) 1fz lG,t7*,0/ = soeyLI-
(6 -{*, i-fg blorked

a t/i uos r" 4a/z tf 8V
V 2,{= 0,? (n,gh -5,4-s6, - /,b34" g): //,/3b.
Tr,r- lZ, t/n,o/ =- 4v? Plf
(g) 9/b v t,Lb io clc rr{ n f,t p q{s I (p o 

Ft 
{

--+ 
PyauiCs J/erA;5 ,{ uai€ %d€}+n' 0,0

'"'u/%07b
zat 9
Lf"'structu ral engineering

35



E* W /au/: (pn,f

\/t- (*o) = o,10t,r- lz,t)o = Ig,+L'

8,2.1v

4,sQ-

0Ern

- lA'L

J) /)
t

I

)+
-{

$

B/oc l. { na.-"Q
&cl@9

- w,+L

*

Ug Uftp) = [&,*/sz'= sss F/{
* B/ocL € ^uu( 8d @+ i 62//awt-s zza f M
1r 4,ys b'{}dL { *o*{ ##,k,9

o l/o ds ry= 4Z{ {rl{ {ri,trrVwt"r:rf)a
At g-+ arrblsr ked #k- +,\Lkz"': &T ft{o t{ffi,f{"

C ho rcl - o,dt ( z /? 
t*) 

/tnt : +, t+b &sci

^'r /%oYb
I /9

K?"'structu ral engineeri ng

- 9,4-O

-2,99

36



"'u /%o7k
I /

eE1;? S :t. r
rL'iU-* Q7"

Otn hru 5-/.O Lao/s 1
fl-L{ta (

Vft = 0,3 x [l,L :l

1/ : b,v uf-r-zl =

(t,"t bb {A6$;)
t7z # A/a*r 'fl/

/f ew

Ue- r &,q (au,;- l,ot-l ev) = 7,#fE
V 3 7"oV /sr.t= /F"g /r/{" 

d- /bs; 8W

structural engineering

37



6trru
"on /fu.07k

I 0/g
pw M*

hra N'S { * a,{"r

o,?(eo,?/- /,vs€x/o,dt' ) = f4,9L
rL,'t-,g /77,?3': 2g-Q ,r/{ d ?z,e {,1{ (rV

vri - #,?(at,t)': 24,vn-
,\f - L

,: +11

t

v,
v-

Plf
t^ro,b7- ll.D- {,

-R/ac{. + /L*? r'! tl" tCI #

v7

J€ $^"

iK/tL
"101,1- /,99fr x g,b7 - 3,&6gYQ): B,z^

a

Vv= o

vp-: l3,g?5e,3v': Eere

V; += {3,L771,4?I = tl?
pl{

fll{

structural engineeri ng

38



I

b.
t{\
tdlz,v1' -r3" 79'

\
f"
-S

ry

/;t>"( _b Gfit\}-3 trss;Fb

4,b7'll/p 4"ce
4.to7l
It

t*"il,JW 6t0E (nruNaer

,
1,0

C
(9t 77'

40"0t "

D

F
afio fo?

I

593'
A

1i

39



Pter B 3,to7/5,73 =' O,G?

tt c ?,a7y'q?v30,7,+

Pt

P

Qr= tl, tta g

12r = r3,oz7

2 - 17,79G

Aa. - 0,AtTl

= 0,0? I
C,o 95

toon /waz c?

L N 1e
*Eyl{g 9o*

O,0bg

€rs"re

Ci,e-

Crnu uA t{ L,*-^e-" /- A

L/C= /o,b?/r,o7 = o,&+ Rc:2.o4s

(s,i7a /,6;f )
: lo oaz/Lg"7 7 = 0,2{ 1-- a,og I

- fu{€"t s-fny i'v?/43,v? = 0 , tl - AF=o,as7

L;r
h/d

Zr o g,r7fos,v? = 0tl3 Ao

tb.r* t3cp &*,% 5 /G,gW

r+ l,?gfEivS = 1,37{

Pt - /,17&
P,+* Paco = /2,00+ A

2A o, //3

ft€ r''

structu ral engi neeri ng

I

p/€.r 4Bc"0 *A*Zo= fr,$ZA40



L'26

a-s'6)

ll or" jI{ ? f-'L< e-,0

^ Z'uqfu 4 #',Wl
ih,,L' = n€), b tuX A, 0 :, A

(ow) rlvl-7L? oail N'5

=n{)

,b
,"& +

7

ll"n

t+'fr
-d6'gl

d4 lE&

*, 4l '67 d6 l'6 =*f\
ir ql'€,2 

^ l#'0 *h

LL'6 I

I

";s8f,*f f/.r q\ i {s,t 7- 
o&r"':-/l t t ?

7,u#-,uyr/r,,*o ot!. r,'oJ S"t atu/S y* & / ;,

Hae/

= \qa'w"l-zo'e)x €.,@ =.d

v€€"ff = ,/6'//xE'G ='W
( " ,v) a*,/ /) vN **€ilryt'r1tEl

,:0ry3u4

3/ Jt ta nS*V*--

/ Lq'c /

Jtd?,'!Jr.y-s enl # 
u 

I 
-h'

q/oo6l r"",

6tp2/// ","o

,o lA 
{a//(/="

1?,8'g =

UH

,&

a-/ ftap*)1W?

.(st

{ra!t4-9*-
+bl

"f*% 
?/$r./r1t €d?g

Suueaurtua leJnpnJls

41



GFM
l"b# / Q(ryl7k
Date /9
'prfi VL"

3,zv b-

b

)

hla t"/ /-2 *rC
w*// / u=46,2L Aq.a

//>, rt U*=46,2

ftef c, vr= Lb,z

1Ift= ?,7? 7A? 71= bos /t{
pier e, vo= ab,r\,r, 

"%)(g*ffi)= 
s,?bb

tru= €,38/g,v?n = lo l0 f ff

/,47b
/Z,oP

V,67 ,fLk - /7, Lo
I 79(*! f

1Ir= 11, ro/ S,zVt _ I l+8 fl{
4oL b,7,5

rll/aut fr = (n*
(*rrnprt€ par:f,hr{f Sro **/)
rfr)#: 43x0,79=9?f

4,0 - 1,7{) frw E

PLA''l

\
ft

fi*,>' ! IntL\
rsi

?2,

) At,,;Y b rcJ@7f
/ '.4 U eL--

+(92-fr) /,zrxL - lZl i,
tl

V *- /
5r

structural engi neeri ng

t
!t

4o I
th V

v

/2/
? A,f / F/42



43



44



6FFT '"on /gpa7b
'"'///zo/g
'P/7&l# "

= o,/vz
Y9

xz
4,+b? I 0t

b/

)

Crn U aou // (c"t,c€

/o'fliti lr/d /o,bz/t0,0= /,97 Pc= /,2??

32 pte {s t,/r/ = /o,br/r,t, = /t-,oo P.F

I/ s o hlg/oo/d /,90v2,(p7

tl

)

2D^= Z,F+G+0,ZgG = Z,,fi+Z

\/

to',snII '\) 44,9).o,gb/z_ {g,oL
lg,oo/to'= l,go Ltf

/,9e yz,a: E 42 fst >1Z/ ;r,z
--.* Silergfhe*t rc' gie's {;{ {rr'"'!si'! :

0,99 Q t+)t

t ."t I :

1). =

fr=

urf,tr

,,-i \

f{, = af,t
T,ozrxgL

z 6*=+3 fli

structu ral engi neeri ng

45



E€FD
Job# !9ooTb
o"" ffiLlp*g@?s"

)

(wtu Wq,il [uoe 4

V= 0,3 (

,9h"{es/ f /ent

/ 13,r 7 3*,/ k

A/d = '1,4/9,7g = /, o
1,ql /2, o = /,b Z

a,t?1d,ov = /,?f
7,73/637 = #,b&

3,?7/4,o : o,*st
,4,t}/e,O : A,0

P+p) +,7t**

3,Unb

c,T/ {-
lq,g3

i),-F 4,f#

/,og*

/.VSS

)

t'tdt r"xy: bl =

tt {,t=

L34,/Y9,41-: //,W
fuJ/
/z t irt

4e 6t
{ sjX D i)

t
I

___#
,9,V?

so fi{ Qr^o ttU
tl y/{d'

n
{,t=4frx/Z/>,

t S(
/

7,rpr{x 7Z

structural engineeri ng

/- Frn - l,':fj'i

46



h{-rr f !;r"{f tN fr y-P g.,Jff!"r"n

r'* /,33 /l/.0 u

4",t*'t t

8/,4f [,{"

,,* t,Wt uJrt te--

I fifrYt't to

T*"
.$
q$

I

,lo:l
F\
rb

V. t

I ndf,#
F/€ff

st\ \

'lnl

t "0l ,b7'

&pe NruL{. a\

$
\b. *-tb b

\A f,u hF"bs'fr 
H 

*'

t,lfto,tal'

3&r{p7 I

{

I l,?3 t4,fr

(f\
C<\
st

47



6,rre

Co Nee f>

r
tPx

o
*

E.t-iut" J-; = 4 {,r, Z' 0,429 Wfx
0,7

o N
b

qi ?
o-r I s\
- | *-\-

37,+b =

ht\,I-l

6'fi7

.s
$'

(

o

4,a

\f,--

F\*t ,l e *{s €r fu CSxfufr

51, Fio = e,f F a,f {3 #rx = /,07 ufx

ntt/ oug{ etrc€{t{ 0,*x/,Ox/,f dfx=' 0,ho afx

= 0,bCx37r1L= gq,+l- = e,o x/4{a
€ ,4"79

{Wo,'r Cfl; Y{
= 0,9vZv C,7lx,l*= ed,%

&

j
L nA' z_lalf, l:L

C,, = Tn= 2"0 x Grs-L= 13,0k

#r7k /?r,0: 9,lL
)

rob# 
| geo Tb

0/9//

EibPE
of37structu ral engi neering

,41? 8,oT , 8,67

G,sV

I
,,9)79

l0,b

/{r77

3fi?_

(E) g fil, t'3.: 2x53*-*# = /0 rTL

48



Connection Calculator Page I of I

t9@o7Q
vr /*ot P
/ w*ry

p;fi

Cn€f O

Gonnection Yield Modes

Im

Is

I 1340 lbs.

13050 lbs.

IIIs 5348 lbs.

IV 7067 lbs.

. Bolt bending yield strength of 45,000 psi is assumed.

' The Adjusted ASD Capacity is only applicable for bolts with adequate end distance,
edge distance and spacing per NDS chapter I 1

. ASTM 436 Steel is assumed for steel side members l/4 in. thick, and ASTM 4653
Grade 33 Steel is assumed for steel side members less than l/4 in. thick.

While every efforf has been made to insure the accuracy of the information presented, and
special effort has been made to assure that the information reflects the state-of-the-art,
neither the American Wood Council nor its members assume any responsibility for any
particular design prepared from this on-line Connection Calculator. Those using this on-line
Connection Calculator assume all liability from its use.

The Connection Calculator was designed and created by Cameron Knudson, Michael
Dodson and David Pollock at Washington State University. Support for development of the
Connection Calculator was provided by American Wood Council.

Design Allowable Stress Design (ASD)

Connection Lateral loading

Fastener Bolt

Loading Double Shear - Wood Main Member

Glulam Douglas Fir-Larch

6.75 in.

Main Member: Angle
Load to

Side Member Steel

Side Member L/4,n

Side Member: Angle of Load
to Grain

Fastener Diam 3/4 in.

Load Duration Factor C_D = 1.6

Wet Service Factor C M=1.0

Temperature Factor C-t = 1.0

usted ASD

https://www.awc.org/calculators/connectioncalc.l60106/ccstyle.asp?design_method:AS... llll2l20l949



6€rf)

o

r I

"on /9e07b
Date 19

39"structu ral engineeri ng

*t //rrfa,'s / Co,zf

Li"t 2, C*tJ

Sub = /,25 /f or,s,F;

Ao,,= uY?YrTt- se 3 hrtv -T*

x lzx ll +'
a/ talW;,* 4, &,

Pr ar,{ Lf e 
g.oJ

t/4G@

nu&

s

4-

Su,$= l,75>"50,3 /sOD = €,+ta

-5 
Ctu/L( brra hc,J' o{ |

/rnr/,ug &t.(t$r rS, * I''
) n€ 6(g y# Jr"ytt{ Nq //,

€cc& ,,/ 04) Jp(xzL|= /4v+z0v/,b= %/0Te,/&0,
3/+',9 Ror/ ,gn= o,9Yo,++F?b = / 4,7

0,7(K0,?7r-f& = //,?

il;S 6xb#tro -lvq..uud2r. *u /
ftl; /0.*x 9,0 x /,b7 : lerL

la,b7

L
b-

k
/3. a T,

g)Y4',g &oz = +xz,T >, l,q7 = /3,2.'fu0)
L p(rc d,zre

9,1
k

u-
/P,B

-y

?
D

rn%. = g/,2 rE-

t.k

t,
z50



6rt f t)
'oou /g& d? 7 b
o"" tf/t-o t 3"
PE,O

f{ N* Qp "t

Co //er / srs , Cd
gLui'€

L"-0,7 flr = 19,+
FL

a
6k,&E: A, f&' z uJpx

q,l
.sl

!
o
o(
I

6

/sta7

fl'] n'y (t,: n-= t6,9 b

o,7vlb,9 = //,hL (ts")
(g.)crMTtl = Lxo+/*{#. /2,2b

0,7 x P, o = 6,3 tL ot+!-yfl

&,'*? /

structural engineeri ng

51



&rrn
^ou lgoEZh
Date I 4/p
*pfu 41"

CCI / f en"f-ars

/r4L otr( C1 ,ihi {rt ;>) tt {o ,yVti$ gt/"
efeuo.t t', W'r r

r*t'u fli,r?'t &,-t

.-f**r it't t1')'i*/\,, s Ltlttr4 fl.n-'' T^," 8,In/

tF) (e) dr ,fr,qs # = ilrPxg. x0,?/x,{,(} = tq.,Vb ery/

tore C i-*
*."t".4 €,rf' Ou T* *4=b * /o'= qA,*

7 5,67 '

(e)#u se#
_*-_- > ffy1 ,-,t 

"{c,

#,9N#,*4 ts{* * t5,&

ts //ecfar
b

lĥ.

T:IE ,& c,#g i,/
9Q,

l/s4 49: 0,99 h,- e *g- S c-n/

Crnrt do aa// 26,b4*0,7= 16,88

vg g ,rwXf = lTsD #
X0'* 7

fr,9 Y
f ar/

ttzg(
//7s xg f /VrcF /0

structural engi neeri ng

G yr"rn/k/ .@,"
= /9,4 F

./' n /{
,"C,tt"J" +
l,{ tct t

52



A e,SbLg e 'bbbc l,+\o
D +,0b
g o,gb
F t-lb1

{92,@

9 o urlf g/ 0€ c'w{a

wa'{ C^=T*- 8,9Yo

3x? =64,blt

#PaO I

0\q
N

[\
C',c\t

o\
cnt

No
d

l

o
s
\')

t\s{\
*9
Cll

/(ln
tf\

sfr

F
s
s /

It-
.9
..9

i
Itt

\i:S)

$$t\$
-\D\

I,,73

l..

44,tB?lF,lOt/ Q.b1

hllt

$ri

c

J

9,13'4

53



$*ft Ns

$qN\
\a
$$\
s
$
\D

NpTd#/ea

€
p1,0*

7
| 'q4, 

= 4#'0x q'#6

dq'## * &X 4r'1tt

l'0L

ra

Wtfti7
€ r't

I

L

l'#€t,?

D$
$

t\
t

a@
ftb'07

fi

.J
('\

s

lI
I

a
hqF

lN
\

I

Lq,7-/

$6s//**91

I

.$''

{

Lq'7 I I
t

$l !

$
I

I

I

I

I

I

l

P
*lsUJ

I

I

I

I

\0
\t$
s

I

I

I
I

G,olLarT/ &

tL

I

I
l

I

ij

p
$

'lNl
'O

EN

I
s
tt

L,4,'z I

/{.r/s 1 og €5/

I

I

I

I

I

Q'Ol

N

J

I
,q

,66'/ gIfr*'t Q,,g'w
54



6€ru

l,tla // 4rtc $arn C

l-f*pt c,# $, k* re w/"

k. /* -fr-: /'4 €-h") @
/*tl

/+ /,tu Q tt*"f 6A

{r 0,+ x /,O X /,€+ )c /,{ )c !,4}f

(p (" :-
/G t:

: 0t9Z tAjre E-vl

- /,0o uf A/.!.u tl
/,G &

tl ,l

)

Ntrff:1 Wrt l, I
Wr A-s
\Nf &-c

7s i/;
t!

t'r" 6 ,b7 =
= 7s ys{ -l- 96,p Fg,?r?g x3,

I

g'3,3
-*+ t&

t4r

rilo F/

'o?,Trt'*gg,eT'x3,
)

Job# lgda Vb
/0 2 0/3

'fet*b ++"structural engineering

Wf = 7t {'1x Gb I
33/ = VLs fl#

55



tates

dakl /+n, hor e M
&*/ wJ* //

df * 3Q,r./76,a7/* 4"t+ f$
F= 0,2f" dfs Vhl yt/
Tu= 7g/x-€r??'= 40304

0,1 ns t+27#

HTT ,O/ ,b ,rE7* xfe 5l +r o'('

&ero "onIgoplb
It *rP

,TL
ttb 46"

S"bdr aokrc'lr rv!

Fv
0,1

>20
(-^.:

?o#*g *14 : goz&
,AL?,9D"

'T (rer) = asl;f z = 4se fL{

structural engineering

56



a // ,4, ( e

#gr-tt

4 
^ru

f1 +
Ueu"V/I

wesf l''Ja //
/, _,
LLI/Q L

wf
0,92 h)f

L @,gzy7s fr{v/2,{'= gbL
* & 6trL,b7r ,":. q-v&&#'

F=

n
( N

Rea.ryt Sy)o-"u, / f, 77- &. b7 = / +-, b 7
P^= a?n\tss/z = gyseq

/

0,1 /1n* funz c#/ ,HnT
x / + .!a'a A L /z bo

/

$
)

L,(

t/sg Ser xP (ou)> o,7xz?te: tbl&/09T+
4,&x- V* ffi) ht? q @ W f8, &- ,illrl ,'f f,r ,

&/ft"orj -Lrc&)rLl *t
=' 6arl?o >

structu ral engi neeri ng

r/goCv
rt* &Date l/

"2//9 rt{o "t

57



Connection Calculator Page I of 1

&,Frp

Gonnection Yield Modes

t9oo7 Q
ttfz*t9
I ft h'&

4T

Im 3432 lbs.

Is 10440 lbs.

IIIs l02l lbs.

IV 3916lbs.

Cr, ^ 
-f-rn

,rl
t {,/a' l}{or t tS

C
Bolt bending yield strength of 45,000 psi is assumed.

. The Adjusted ASD Capacity is only applicable for bolts with adequate end distance,
edge distance and spacing per NDS chapter I l.

. ASTM ,{36 Steel is assumed for steel side members l/4 n. thick, and ASTM A.653
Grade 33 Steel is assumed for steel side members less than l/4 in. thick.

While every effort has been made to insure the accuracy of the information presented, and
special effort has been made to assure that the information reflects the state-of-the-art,
neither the American Wood Council nor its members assume any responsibility for any
particular design prepared from this on-line Connection Calculator. Those using this on-line
Connection Calculator assume all liability from its use.

The Connection Calculator was designed and created by Cameron Knudson, Michael
Dodson and David Pollock at Washington State University. Support for development of the
Connection Calculator was provided by American Wood Council.

La'\i

Design Methodl Allowable Stress Design (ASD)

Connection Lateral ioadi

Fastener Bolt

Loading Double Shear - Wood Main Member

Main Member Type Douglas Fir-Larch

Main Member Thickness

Main Member: Angle ol
Load to Grain

Side Member Type Steel

Side Member Thickness L/4 in.

Side Member: Angle of Load
to Grain lo

Fastener Diameter 3/4 in

Load Duration Factor C_D = 1.6

Wet Service Factor C_M = 1.0

Temperature Factor Ct=1.0

usted ASD

https://www.awc.orglcalculators/connectioncalc.160106/ccstyle.asp?design_method:AS. .. llll5l20l9
58



#em

Mor *4 wa // ,/ ,r/trl
+{

er3
+t$ p{{ x.+' = tb7 0 T^

-uwafl Tn = //7a fr }er xP q //eu*t / i-Ps #

$r,bc$iyhrrynr t/ tuv.r /4-/ )c &

zte f lf

{.&c
r'-7(-

-tf* 3x 7C
1rc

(F) *1, S r+?*e w,,1, lo *

C*"'x J- a//p tal

'b./ ;/ sda h o 
# f ,

TF OV

M{*
J,gtzoo

_ z{a
Wa)

Mrrlt Wal/ "f */"r'rt'u,r
!r,t' lm'gl,trgrtl t{ tu"t-'( /b' x ?,{/
\f: *yt/?p = 3t2 Pl+;Q >. z5-

------+ P.o dde blor t"* A elprt l'l

..t

d l/ ttal '/z = 3{p8 Fii Ctsn)
/?

-+-.. \ |{rcr inl{r f,(^ ku/"f

T*= +l#Y'/L*t *; $64##
4u**

-*_-
+

*f\,fl(/,

l!

,7TW

^oo lgoozb
Date rS

+0"structu ral engineeri ng

:r-- lir .;rlJ

+{,

* /to/
sdea 4 (rtra)

J
lS"rrSt'

59



6Ew
*'n /9e.p7b
Date

"72fu 4?"'

ttt r& e$ at ${r-ro.{#s f A/*,,,tt

-ftrb il*7/y^A///:/ , tuyL /g,{' x 7,S'
'w 0,7v383 pl{ x i?"i = v?o ytlA'ffi 'i

+ aebc ft{
Trb 7#z(tg,r+-tz) = tg+04 1('bed'

2

Sa*"e rrorY /, u,J* / / re/ro {u7 ,

T,

&-"3

€aut'' bt/a// a/ //e"v 7-a t,t{r'

B{d,,t Sru*,,,, /# rs'
/

LGn= 3e/ fl/f
P^=- eooC#

0,7 llu = /4te #

Hll'rk{b

structu ral engi neeri ng

60



 

Sonoma Valley Fire District  
 

Board of Directors Meeting 

Agenda Item Summary 

November 10, 2020 

 
 

 
Agenda Item No. Staff Contact 

10a Stephen Akre, Fire Chief 

Agenda Item Title 

Approve Resolution 2020/2021-12 updating the SVFD’s Trustees for the Bidwell Deferred Compensation Plan 
(457 Plan).     

Recommended Actions 
Approve Resolution 2020/2021-12. 
   
Executive Summary 

Staff discovered in the process of updating our Deferred Compensation Plan with Bidwell, that the SVFD’s 
named trustees for the Plan were out of date.  Former Fire Chief Freeman and Finance Officer Darcy were both 
still named.  Staff has worked with Bidwell to remove of the former employees as Trustees and has named 
current Fire Chief Akre and Finance Officer Jason as Trustees of the Plan.   

Alternative Actions 

Do not approve the Resolution and request alternate actions. 

Strategic Plan Alignment 

While not aligned to a specific goal, this is a necessary step in maintaining financial management and 
oversight best practices. 
 

Fiscal Summary – FY 20/21 
Expenditures Funding Source(s) 

Budgeted Amount $ District General Fund $ 

Add. Appropriations Reqd. $ Fees/Other $ 

 $ Use of Fund Balance $ 

  Contingencies $ 

  Grants $ 

    

Total Expenditure $ Total Sources $ 

Narrative Explanation of Fiscal Impacts (if required) 
Staff has negotiated a no cost update to the named Trustees.   

Attachments 

1. Resolution 2020/2021-12 
2. Bidwell Amendment 
3. Bidwell Invoice 
4. Bidwell Summary of Material Modifications 

 

 

61



RESOLUTION NO. 2020/2021-12 
Dated: November 10, 2020 

 
 

RESOLUTION OF 

Valley of the Moon Fire Protection District 303933 

FOR THE ADOPTION OF TRUSTEE CHANGE AMENDMENT 
 

On November 1, 2020, the following resolutions to amend the Valley of the Moon Fire Protection 

District 457 Deferred Compensation Plan were duly adopted by a majority of the Board of 

Directors of Valley of the Moon Fire Protection District 303933 and that such resolutions have not 

been modified or rescinded as of the date hereof: 

  

RESOLVED, that the form of the Amendment presented to this meeting to change the trustees 

under the plan is accepted. Such amendment will be effective July 1, 2020. 

  

RESOLVED, that effective July 1, 2020, Mark Freeman and Georgette Darcy are hereby removed 

as trustee(s) of the Valley of the Moon Fire Protection District 457 Deferred Compensation Plan, 

and that the proper officers of the Employer shall act to notify Mark Freeman and Georgette Darcy 

of the removal; 

  

The undersigned further certifies that attached hereto is a true copy of the proper notification to 

remove trustees of the Valley of the Moon Fire Protection District 457 Deferred Compensation 

Plan approved and adopted in the above resolutions. 

  

RESOLVED, that effective July 1, 2020, Stephen Akre, and effective October 1, 2020, Jennifer 

Jason are hereby appointed as trustees of the Valley of the Moon Fire Protection District 457 

Deferred Compensation Plan, and that the proper officers of the Employer shall act to notify 

Jennifer Jason and Stephen Akre of the appointment; 

  

The undersigned further certifies that attached hereto is a true copy of the proper notification to 

add trustees of the Valley of the Moon Fire Protection District 457 Deferred Compensation Plan 

approved and adopted in the above resolutions. 

  

RESOLVED, the Employer shall act as soon as possible to notify employees of the Employer of 

the adoption of this amendment. 

  

RESOLVED, the Employer be, and hereby are, authorized and directed to execute any and all 

such documents and to perform any and all such acts as may be necessary and proper to effect the 

foregoing; and THE UNDERSIGNED, does hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true and 

correct copy of the Resolutions duly and regularly adopted by the Employer.  

 

Passed, approved, and adopted at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Sonoma 

Valley Fire District by the following votes. Passed and adopted this November 10, 2020.  

 

 

 

62



       _________________________________ 

       William Norton, President 

Ayes: _________ 

Noes: _________ 

Absent:_________ 

 

CERTIFICATION: 

 

 

____________________________ 

Maci Jerry, Clerk 

 
Valley of the Moon Fire Protection District 303933  
November 10, 2020  
 

63



Valley of the Moon Fire Protection District 457 Deferred Compensation Plan 

TRUSTEES 

AMENDMENT # 2020-Trustee 
 

 

This Amendment is adopted to change the trustees to the Plan.  

 

This Amendment shall be effective beginning on and after July 1, 2020.  

 

This Amendment shall supersede the provisions of the Plan to the extent those provisions are 

inconsistent with the provisions of this Amendment.  

 

Effective July 1, 2020, Mark Freeman and Georgette Darcy are removed as trustee(s) of the  

 

Valley of the Moon Fire Protection District 457 Deferred Compensation Plan;  

 

Effective July 1, 2020, Stephen Akre and effective October 1, 2020, Jennifer Jason are 

appointed as trustees of the Valley of the Moon Fire Protection District 457 Deferred 

Compensation Plan;  

 

Where appropriate, the term "Plan" shall mean the plan, trust, and adoption agreement.  

 

 

 

_____________________________   __________ 

William Norton, President    Date 

  

Valley of the Moon Fire Protection District 303933  
November 10, 2020  
 

64



Transaction Number: 61502

Account Number: 1093

Jennifer Jason

Date:

Sonoma CA  95476

10/22/2020

630 2nd Street West
VMFPD 303933

3251 Esplanade
Chico, CA 95973
(530) 891-9519

Bidwell Consulting Services, Inc.

Balance Due: $0.00

11/21/2020Date Due:

Preparation of forms and notices necessary for amending the plan to remove Mark Freeman and
Georgette Darcyh and add Jennifer Jason and Stephen Akre as trustees.

$150.00

John Hancock Credit ($150.00)

$0.00Balance Due:

Date Due:

Company Name:

61502

Account Number: 1093

11/21/2020

VMFPD 303933

Transaction Number:

Amount Paid: $:_______________

Visa M/C Acct No: _______________________________________ Exp Date: ___________ Security Code:_________

After $0.0001/20/2021

Thank you for your prompt payment!  Please include the stub below with your payment. 
Full payment is due within 30 days of receipt. An 8% late fee will be charged to invoices over 90 days past due. 

To pay by credit card go to www.bidwellconsulting.com and follow the "online payments" link, 
or complete the payment information below.

65



Valley of the Moon Fire Protection District 303933 

Valley of the Moon Fire Protection District 457 Deferred Compensation Plan 

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL MODIFICATIONS 

 

To: Participants of Valley of the Moon Fire Protection District 457 Deferred 

From: Valley of the Moon Fire Protection District 303933 

Date: November 1, 2020 

 

This is a summary of recent changes to your Plan. 

 

Please file this "Summary of Material Modifications" with your Summary Plan Description (the booklet 

that explains your Plan). If you would like to see the full text of the changes, you may inspect the Plan 

Document or receive a copy of the changes as explained in the "ERISA Rights" section of your Summary 

Plan Description. 

 

Your plan has been amended effective July 1, 2020 as follows: 

 

Mark Freeman and Georgette Darcy are removed as trustees of the Valley of the Moon Fire Protection 

District 457 Deferred Compensation Plan. 

 

Jennifer Jason, effective October 1, 2020, and Stephen Akre, effective July 1, 2020 are appointed as 

trustees of the Valley of the Moon Fire Protection District 457 Deferred Compensation Plan. 

 

 

 

Jennifer Jason 

Valley of the Moon Fire Protection District 303933 

630 2nd Street West 

Sonoma CA 95476-6901 

66



 

Sonoma Valley Fire District  
 

Board of Directors Meeting 

Agenda Item Summary 

November 10, 2020 

 
 

 
Agenda Item No. Staff Contact 

10b Trevor Smith, Fire Marshall 

Agenda Item Title 

Approval of grant funding and the new Unmanned Aerial System (UAS) program for the SVFD 

Recommended Actions 
Approve the grant and the UAS program 

Executive Summary 

  The intent of the program is to be able to operate in hazardous conditions to provide our Incident 
Commander with better situational awareness so that they can more effectively deploy their resources and 
keep people safe. The old saying holds true, “a picture is worth 1,000 words”. Real-time pictures from UAS 
have proven to make a difference in an operational firefighting. This technology will allow us to deploy 
resources faster, fully document an incident and identify homes and occupants in need that may otherwise 
not be identified. 
  From a fire prevention standpoint, access to an UAS would afford us the ability to identify “at risk” areas 
within our wildland urban interface that require vegetation and forest management.  Access to a UAS will also 
increase both safety and efficiency during inspections and allow us to identify remote areas requiring proper 
maintenance that would be crucial in slowing the spread of wildfire. 
  This technology will benefit both our employee and our residences by providing and increasing safety 
through efficiency. UAS programs in other agencies have proven to save both life and property. 

Alternative Actions 

Do not approve or approve with changes 

Strategic Plan Alignment 

This effort is in alignment with Goal 3 

Fiscal Summary – FY 20/21 
Expenditures Funding Source(s) 

Budgeted Amount $15,255.65 District General Fund $255.65 

Add. Appropriations Reqd. $ Fees/Other $ 

 $ Use of Fund Balance $ 

  Contingencies $ 

  Grants $15,000.00 

    

Total Expenditure $15,255.65 Total Sources $15,255.65 

Narrative Explanation of Fiscal Impacts (if required) 
There may be some recurring insurance costs for the UAS, however they are anticipated to be small in nature.  
The grant funds include an extended warranty, as well as maintenance and repairs for the first year of the 
program. 

Attachments 

1. SVFD UAS Application Packet 
2. Grant Agreement 
3. Draft SVFD Operations Policy 
4. Draft SVFD UAS Operations Manual 

67



Trevor Smith Valley of the Moon Fire Protection District DBA as Sonoma Valley Fire & Rescue 
Authority

Printed On: 26 August 2020 2020 Fire Prevention Grant 1

Sonoma Valley Fire Unmanned Aircraft Fire Prevention 
& Safety Unit.
2020 Fire Prevention Grant

 

Valley of the Moon Fire Protection District DBA as Sonoma 
Valley Fire & Rescue Authority
Trevor Smith 
630 Second Street West
Sonoma, CA 95476

O: 707-996-2102
M: 707-975-0857

Trevor  Smith  
trevors@svfra.org
O: 707-933-2305
M: 707-975-0857

68



Trevor Smith Valley of the Moon Fire Protection District DBA as Sonoma Valley Fire & Rescue 
Authority

Printed On: 26 August 2020 2020 Fire Prevention Grant 2

Application Form

Question Group
Fire Department, Firefighter Association or Organization Name* 

Sonoma Valley Fire District ( formerly Valley of the Moon Fire Protection District DBA Sonoma Valley Fire 
& Rescue Authority )

Name of Person Completing this Application* 
Trevor Smith

What is Your Affiliation with the Fire Department, Firefighter Association or 
Organization?* 

Fire Marshal

Fire Department, Firefighter Association or Organization Size* 
Aprox 100,000 Sq Miles, 120 Paid employees.

Website 
svfra.org

Project Name* 
Sonoma Valley Fire Unmanned Aircraft Fire Prevention & Safety Unit.

Provide an Overview of Your Project* 
Please explain how your project will help prevent against or mitigate the impact(s) of wildfires in your local 
community, as well as how it will increase the public's safety and/or awareness. 

Subject to COVID-19 social distancing and state re-opening guidelines, requests for funding may focus on fire 
prevention and safety education and messaging, including issues such as wildfire safety, emergency preparedness 
or first responder community engagement.

The intent of the program is to be able to operate in hazardous conditions to provide our IC’s (Incident 
Commander) with better situational awareness so they could more effectively deploy their resources and 
keep people safe. The old saying holds true  “a picture is worth 1,000 words” real-time pictures from drones 

69



Trevor Smith Valley of the Moon Fire Protection District DBA as Sonoma Valley Fire & Rescue 
Authority

Printed On: 26 August 2020 2020 Fire Prevention Grant 3

have proven to make all the difference in the world. This technology will allow us to deploy resources faster, 
fully document the incident and identify homes and occupants in need that may otherwise not be identified.  

From a fire prevention standpoint access to an unmanned aircraft would afford us the ability to identify 
areas within our at risk fire wildland and wildland urban interface area that require vegetation and forest 
management.  Access to a UAV will increase both safety and efficiency during inspection and allow us to 
identify remote areas that require management that would be crucial in slowing the spread of wildfire. 

This technology will benefit both the employee and the customer and provide for increased safety and 
efficiency. UAV programs in other agencies have proven to save both life and property.

Purpose for Funding* 
Summarize in one sentence the specific purpose for which you are requesting funding.

Implementation of a unmanned drone vehicle program to be utilized by the fire prevention and operation 
division for vegetation management, hazard assessment/identification to promote community and firefighter 
safety.

List Your Project Goals and How you Plan to Meet Them* 
Examples:

 Goal 1. Prepare a fire prevention education flyer for distribution within your service area. The plan for 
Goal 1 is to develop flyer content and budget for printing and distribution.

 Goal 2. Distribute the prepared flyer electronically and at a community event. The plan for Goal 2 is to 
post flyer across all social media channels, as well as reserve booth space at a community event to pass 
out flyers, subject to COVID-19 social distancing and/or state re-opening guidelines. 

• Obtain unmanned aerial vehicle (UAV) equipped with video and thermal cameras. - Secure Grant 
funding and other internal and external funding sources to ensure program success. 

• Obtain FAA licensure and meet legal requirements to ensure program safety. - Contract for training 
and prepare employees for rigorous FAA testing. 

• Secure Liability Insurance and Damage and Replacement Insurance. - work with our current insurance 
provider to obtain the proper coverage. 

• Finalize established organizational operating procedures for UAV use. - continue work with committee 
made up of internal and external stakeholders to finalize official policies and procedures. 

• Continue to work with internal and external stakeholders to provide additional operational benefits. - 
Per program design regular committee meetings will provide an opportunity for program evaluation and 
modifications to the program to provide for efficiency and additional opportunities. 

Project start date (below) additional information - Our intent is to begin this program after receipt of 
grant funding. There is no end date as this program will become a part of our organization's operation and 
continued funding will be born by the agency. 

70



Trevor Smith Valley of the Moon Fire Protection District DBA as Sonoma Valley Fire & Rescue 
Authority

Printed On: 26 August 2020 2020 Fire Prevention Grant 4

Project Start Date* 
01/01/2021

Project End Date* 
12/31/2021

Geographic Area Served* 
Please select the counties your project will impact

Sonoma

Provide the Name(s) of the City (or cities) that Your Project will Impact.* 
Sonoma, Boyes Hot Springs, EL Verano, Temelec, DIamond A, Glen Ellen, Myacamas, Agua Caliente

Does your Project Directly Impact Tier 3 or Tier 2 High Wildfire Risk Areas? 
Yes

If yes, please explain. 
Much of our service area is within the SRA including HIgh and Moderate California Department of 

Forestry Fire Hazard Severity Zones.

Regional Area* 
In what region of California is your fire department, firefighter association or organization located?

Northern

Population Served* 
Please provide the demographic breakdown of who this project will serve, such as the percentage of your 
department, association or organization's service area that is identified as a disadvantaged community. 

100% of our agencies staff will be served by this project as it will promote firefighter safety before and 
during fire incidents.  Based on 2019 data our populated service area is made up of  a number of 
disadvantaged communities.  Nearly 80 percent of this populated area has been identified as disadvantaged 
communities by 2019 ATP data. Within our fire district there are two schools defined as disadvantaged by 
2019 ATP Data. 

71



Trevor Smith Valley of the Moon Fire Protection District DBA as Sonoma Valley Fire & Rescue 
Authority

Printed On: 26 August 2020 2020 Fire Prevention Grant 5

https://scta.ca.gov/planning/comprehensive-transportation-plan/sonoma-disadvantaged-communities/

Key Management* 
Please list key management personnel who will be involved with or overseeing the project, including their rank and 
title. 

Trevor Smith, Fire Marshal 
Spencer Andreis, Battalion Chief

Similar Successful Project* 
Please provide a brief example of a successful project similar to the one you are proposing. This can describe a 
project that your department, association or organization has been involved with, or a project that you have 
researched. Please include the project's cost in your description (if known). 

Los Angeles Fire Department - https://www.commercialuavnews.com/public-safety/success-lafd-drone-
program - The LA Fire Department has successfully been using UAV since 2018 and report operational 
success with an increase in firefighter and community safety. 

New York Fire, Millstone Valley Fire - https://www.fireapparatusmagazine.com/2018/10/01/fire-
department-drones-serve-a-variety-of-needs-on-incident-scenes/#gref

Promotion/Media Engagement Plan* 
Please describe your promotional/media engagement plan as it pertains to the grant, if it were to be awarded to 
your department, association or organization. Include the name of and contact information for the PIO or relevant 
point of contact. The California Fire Foundation will provide support to develop or assist you with executing your 
plan.

Sonoma Valley Fire Unmanned Aircraft Fire Prevention & Safety Unit would be marketed to the 
community for a number of reasons. Most importantly our agency would want to address the potential 
privacy issues associated with drones, we would want to clearly explain our mission to our customers and 
community to remove any worry. Many people have a negative impression of drones and this would be 
something we want to dispel in our community.  When our customers see a drone flight in their community 
we want them to know we are there ensuring their safety. 

PIO contact Trevor Smith, Fire Marshal and Social Media Coordinator Sarah Gibson - 707-996-2102

Total Project Budget* 
$24,455.65

72



Trevor Smith Valley of the Moon Fire Protection District DBA as Sonoma Valley Fire & Rescue 
Authority

Printed On: 26 August 2020 2020 Fire Prevention Grant 6

Amount Requested* 
What is the total amount you are requesting from the California Fire Foundation?

$15,000.00

Please provide your detailed project budget here* 
Click on the example budget template link to download, then either use it or provide a similar budget and upload it 
here. 

2020_SVFD_Grant_Budget_Worksheet.xlsx

Reasoning for Proposed Budget* 
1) Explain how the grant funds, if awarded, will be spent to support the goals and objectives of the project 
(reviewing your project outcomes, previously listed in the application, could be helpful in answering this particular 
budget question).  

2) If the California Fire Foundation is only able to grant your department, association or organization a percentage 
of the overall project cost, how will you fund the remaining cost of the project? 

Grant funds if awarded will make this essential program a reality. While we have support from both the 
organization and the community,  the current fiscal situation secondary to budgetary losses associated with 
Covid-19 have taken a toll.  This program will provide much needed capabilities in our district and will save 
lives. In addition it will allow for more efficient inspections allowing us to increase productivity and do more 
good from a safety and preparedness perspective with the limited resources available.  

In the event the California Fire Foundation is only able to grant a percentage of the overall costs i fear that 
would be the end of the program. I would work with the agency, the community, and other funding sources in 
an attempt to make up the loss but in this climate I am not overly confident.

Additional Information (optional) 
Please provide any additional information for consideration. This is optional. You can describe it here or upload a 
file here.

https://youtu.be/D3BWpoJ6ijs

https://youtu.be/Ih_ayi318X0

https://www.fireapparatusmagazine.com/2018/10/01/fire-department-drones-serve-a-variety-of-
needs-on-incident-scenes/#gref

https://www.tdworld.com/overhead-transmission/article/20969411/flying-high-to-improve-
vegetation-management

https://www.mdpi.com/journal/fire/special_issues/UAS

73

http://www.cafirefoundation.org/cms/assets/uploads/2018/02/Project-Budget-Example.xlsx


Trevor Smith Valley of the Moon Fire Protection District DBA as Sonoma Valley Fire & Rescue 
Authority

Printed On: 26 August 2020 2020 Fire Prevention Grant 7

Sarah - Review app group
Completeness of Application* 
1 - Poor
2 - Fair
3 - Good
4 - Excellent
 Max Score: 4

Alignment* 
Proposed project aligns with the funding priorities set forth in the Edison and CFF Agreement.

1 - Poor
2 - Fair
3 - Good
4 - Excellent
 Max Score: 4

Financial Stability* 
1 - Poor
2 - Fair
3 - Good
4 - Excellent
 Max Score: 4

Management Systems in Place* 
Key management information, project narrative, and successful project write-up

1 - Poor
2 - Fair
3 - Good
4 - Excellent
 Max Score: 4

Community Impact* 
Promo/media engagement plan, project narrative and successful project write-up

1 - Poor
2 - Fair
3 - Good
4 - Excellent
 Max Score: 4

74



Trevor Smith Valley of the Moon Fire Protection District DBA as Sonoma Valley Fire & Rescue 
Authority

Printed On: 26 August 2020 2020 Fire Prevention Grant 8

Overall Application Score* 
1 - Poor
2 - Good
3 - Excellent
 Max Score: 4

Application Score (comments)* 

75



Trevor Smith Valley of the Moon Fire Protection District DBA as Sonoma Valley Fire & Rescue 
Authority

Printed On: 26 August 2020 2020 Fire Prevention Grant 9

File Attachment Summary
Applicant File Uploads
•   2020_SVFD_Grant_Budget_Worksheet.xlsx
 

76



Budget Worksheet 
Sonoma Valley Fire District ( formerly Valley of the Moon Fire Protection District DBA Sonoma Valley Fire & Rescue Authority )
Project Name: Sonoma Valley Fire Unmanned Aircraft Fire Prevention & Safety Unit.
PROJECT EXPENSES % of Total Expenses Total
DJI Matrice 200 Drone V2 $6,600.04 26.99% $6,600.04
Cameras (Thermal/Zoom) & Mounts $5,822.48 23.81% $162.04
Flight Batteries x 2 $1,033.13 4.22% $3,376.69
Training x 6 Students $1,800.00 7.36% $1,800
Staff Salaries Training $6,800.00 27.81% $6,800
Admin Fees $2,400.00 9.81% $2,400.00

TOTAL PROJECT EXPENSES $24,455.65

SOURCES OF PROJECT REVENUE     Secured      Funding
    Funding   Applied For         Total

California Fire Foundation $ 15,000.00 = $15,000.00
Other Foundations = $0.00
Corporations = $0.00
Individuals $ 255.65 = $255.65
Department or Association $ 2,400.00 $2,400.00
Government Grants $ - = $0.00
Other (specify) = $0.00

Earned Income
Membership Dues Income = $0.00
In-kind Support $6,800.00 = $6,800.00
Other (specify) = $0.00
Other (specify) = $0.00
TOTAL PROJECT REVENUE $24,455.65

77



78



79



80



Policy

334
Sonoma Valley Fire Districts

Fire Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/10/22, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Sonoma Valley Fire Districts

***DRAFT*** Unmanned Aerial System (UAS) Operations -
1

Unmanned Aerial System (UAS) Operations
334.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
The purpose of this policy is to establish guidelines for the use of the small unmanned aerial
system (sUAS) and for the storage, retrieval and dissemination of images and data captured by
the UAS. The following procedures are intended to promote the safe, efficient and lawful operation
of the Sonoma Valley Fire District's small Unmanned Aircraft Systems.

334.2   DEFINITIONS
Definitions related to this policy include:

Unmanned Aerial System (UAS) - An unmanned aircraft of any type that is capable of
sustaining directed flight, whether preprogrammed or remotely controlled (commonly referred to
as an unmanned aerial vehicle (UAV)), and all of the supporting or attached systems designed for
gathering information through imaging, recording or any other means. Unmanned Aircraft Vehicle
(UAV) - An aircraft that is intended to navigate in the air without an on-board pilot.

Unmanned Aircraft Operator - A person exercising control over unmanned aircraft during
flight. The pilot will be ultimately responsible for the operation and solely responsible for the input
of commands/piloting during flight. The pilot will be qualified in the operation of the sUAS by
maintaining currency as required by the FAA COA. The pilot must meet standards required by
the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA), including successful completion of basic knowledge
exam and vetting by the Transportation Security Administration. Pilots are authorized to evaluate
and accept or decline any mission or portion thereof due to safety concerns. Refer to the UAS
Operations Manual for additional information about operator duties and responsibilities.

sUAS Commander – The Sonoma Valley Fire District’s Fire Chief shall also be responsible for
the overall direction and performance of the sUAS Team.

sUAS Supervisor - The Fire Marshal / Battalion Chief is responsible for the day-to-day
supervision of the sUAS Team operations and personnel.

Visual Observer - A trained UA flight crew member responsible for the visual observation of the
sUAS while in flight. The observer will maintain a visual observation of the sUAS while in flight and
alert the pilot of any conditions (obstructions, terrain, structures, air traffic, weather, etc.) which
affect the safety of flight. The observer will be responsible for all aviation related communications
required by the FAA. To accomplish this, the observer will be in close proximity to the pilot to

81



Sonoma Valley Fire Districts
Fire Policy Manual

Unmanned Aerial System (UAS) Operations

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/10/22, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Sonoma Valley Fire Districts ***DRAFT*** Unmanned Aerial System (UAS) Operations -

2

ensure instant communication of information. The observer shall meet standards required by the
FAA granted COA.

Certificate of Authorization (COA) - COA is an authorization issued by the Air Traffic
Organization (FAA) to a public operator for a specific UA activity.

CFR Part 107 - Federal regulation governing sUAS regulation, operation and pilot certification.

334.3   POLICY
Unmanned aircraft systems may be utilized to enhance the Sonoma Valley Fire District's mission
of protecting lives and property when other means and resources are not available or are less
effective. Any use of a sUAS will be in strict accordance with constitutional and privacy rights and
Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) regulations. The sUAS will be operated in accordance with
14 CFR Part 107. Any deviation from 14 CFR Part 107 will be in strict accordance with an FAA
granted COA or Expedited Special Governmental Interest (SGI) Waiver or Authorization for sUAS
operation.

Requests for deployment will be made by the Incident Commander, sUAS Supervisor, or on duty
Chief Officers. The authorizing authority will contact or direct another to contact the sUAS pilot
and notify him/her of the mission. the pilot will determine if the sUAS can be deployed safely and
practically. If the request comes from an outside public safety agency, the request will be directed
to Dispatch.

(a) A sUAS will only be operated by personnel, Unmanned Aircraft Operator and Visual
Observer, who have been trained in the operation of the sUAS system. A Visual
Observer will only be required if necessary under FAA regulations: ie, COA but may be
considered for any flight. All agency personnel with the sUAS responsibilities, including
command officers, will be provided training in policies and procedures governing sUAS
use.

(b) All missions will be documented on the sUAS System Mission Report form designed
for that purpose and all flight time shall be accounted for on the form. The reason for
the flight and type of mission as specified above and name of the supervisor approving
the operation will also be documented.

(c) When the sUAS is being flown, operators will take steps to ensure the camera is
focused on the areas necessary to the mission and to minimize the inadvertent
collection of data about uninvolved persons or places.

82



Sonoma Valley Fire Districts
Fire Policy Manual

Unmanned Aerial System (UAS) Operations

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/10/22, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Sonoma Valley Fire Districts ***DRAFT*** Unmanned Aerial System (UAS) Operations -

3

334.3.1   AUTHORIZED MISSIONS

The use of the sUAS will be limited to authorized missions described herein.

1. In response to specific requests from local, state or federal fire authorities for fire
response and prevention.

2. In response to any transportation type emergencies as defined in Title 49 of the
Code of Federal Regulations. 

3. Search and Rescue (SAR) missions as defined in California Government Code
Section 26614.

4. Structural collapse and building evaluations for rescue, safety and occupancy.

5. In response to hazardous materials spills.

6. Disaster response and recovery to include natural or human caused disasters
including a full overview of a disaster area for post incident analysis and
documentation.

7. Public Education development & training videos & documentation. 

8. Training missions as as necessary to maintain pilot and sUAS readiness and as
authorized from any granted COA.

9. Explosive ordnance disposal (EOD) missions.

10. Structure Fire incidents to provide for operational assessment and evaluation to aid
in the maintenance of crew and community safety.

11. Public safety and life preservation missions to include but not limited to hostage
situations, active shooters, threats for use of incendiary or explosive devices.

12. Post fire or incident investigation to assist with cause, origin and documentation.

13. Pre Incident planning and familiarization in areas in accessible by traditional
means.

All sUAS deployments will be reviewed by the sUAS Supervisor to ensure that they are
conducted in accordance with Sonoma Valley Fire District's policy, FAA regulations, state and
federal law, and with due regard for public privacy.

The administration, safety policy, training requirements, general operation procedures and pre/post flight
actions are contained in the Sonoma Valley Fire District’s sUAS Operations Manual.
 

334.4   PRIVACY
The use of the UAS potentially involves privacy considerations. Absent a warrant or exigent
circumstances, operators and observers shall adhere to FAA altitude regulations and shall not
intentionally record or transmit images of any location where a person would have a reasonable
expectation of privacy (e.g., residence, yard, enclosure). Operators and observers shall take
reasonable precautions to avoid inadvertently recording or transmitting images of areas where

83



Sonoma Valley Fire Districts
Fire Policy Manual

Unmanned Aerial System (UAS) Operations

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/10/22, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Sonoma Valley Fire Districts ***DRAFT*** Unmanned Aerial System (UAS) Operations -

4

there is a reasonable expectation of privacy. Reasonable precautions can include, for example,
deactivating or turning imaging devices away from such areas or persons during UAS operations.

334.4.1   OBLIGATIONS IMPOSED BY LAW-CIVIL CODE 1708.8 (A)(B)

1. A person is liable for physical invasion of privacy when the person knowingly enters
onto the land or into the airspace above the land of another person without permission
or otherwise commits a trespass in order to capture any type of visual image, sound
recording, or other physical impression of the plaintiff engaging in a private, personal,
or familial activity and the invasion occurs in a manner that is offensive to a reasonable
person.

2. A person is liable for constructive invasion of privacy when the person attempts to
capture, in a manner that is offensive to a reasonable person, any type of visual image,
sound recording, or other physical impression of the plaintiff engaging in a private,
personal, or familial activity, through the use of any device, regardless of whether there
is a physical trespass, if this image, sound recording, or other physical impression
could not have been achieved without a trespass unless the device was used.

334.5   PROGRAM COORDINATOR / SUAS SUPERVISOR
The Fire Chief will appoint a program coordinator / sUAS Supervisor who will be responsible
for the management of the UAS program. The program coordinator will ensure that policies and
procedures conform to current laws, regulations and best practices and will have the following
additional responsibilities:

1. Coordinating the FAA Certificate of Waiver or Authorization (COA) application process
and ensuring that the COA is current.

2. Ensuring that all authorized operators and required observers have completed all
required FAA and Sonoma Valley Fire District approved training in the operation,
applicable laws, policies and procedures regarding use of the UAS.

3. Developing uniform protocol for submission and evaluation of requests to deploy
a UAS, including urgent requests made during ongoing or emerging incidents.
Deployment of a UAS shall require written authorization of the Fire Chief or the
authorized designee, depending on the type of mission.

4. Implementing a system for public notification of UAS deployment.

5. Developing an operational protocol governing the deployment and operation of a UAS
including, but not limited to, safety oversight, use of visual observers, establishment
of lost link procedures and secure communication with air traffic control facilities.

6. Developing a UAS inspection, maintenance and record-keeping protocol to ensure
continuing airworthiness of a UAS, up to and including its overhaul or life limits.

7. Developing protocols that ensure retention and purge periods are maintained in
accordance with established records retention schedules.

8. Recommending program enhancements, particularly regarding safety and information
security.

84



Sonoma Valley Fire Districts
Fire Policy Manual

Unmanned Aerial System (UAS) Operations

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/10/22, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Sonoma Valley Fire Districts ***DRAFT*** Unmanned Aerial System (UAS) Operations -

5

9. Ensuring that established protocols are followed by monitoring and providing periodic
reports on the program to the Fire Chief.

334.6   USE OF SUAS
Only authorized operators who have completed the required training shall be permitted to operate
the UAS.

Use of vision enhancement technology (e.g., thermal and other imaging equipment not generally
available to the public) is permissible in viewing areas only where there is no protectable privacy
interest or when in compliance with a search warrant or court order. In all other instances, legal
counsel should be consulted.

sUAS operations at night or over populated areas shall not be conducted absent FAA waiver.
(COA or Expedited SGI Waiver of Authorization for UAS Operation).

334.7   PROHIBITED USE
The UAS video surveillance equipment shall not be used:

1. To conduct random surveillance activities.

2. To target a person based solely on actual or perceived characteristics, such as
race, ethnicity, national origin, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or
expression, economic status, age, cultural group, or disability.

3. To harass, intimidate, or discriminate against any individual or group.

4. To conduct personal business of any type.

The UAS shall not be weaponized.

334.8   DATA RETENTION AND PROCESSING
Upon completion of each sUAS mission, the recorded data shall be reviewed and evaluated for
evidentiary value by the sUAS Commander or authorized designee. Data of identifiable individuals
captured during a sUAS mission shall not be retained unless there is reasonable suspicion that
evidence of criminal activity is present. All retained data shall be maintained or destroyed pursuant
to the Sonoma Valley Fire District's Records retention and evidence policies and in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations

334.9   PROTECTION OF RIGHTS AND PRIVACY CONCERNS
sUAS Commander, sUAS Supervisor, Unmanned Aircraft System Pilots and Observers will
consider the protection of individual civil rights and the reasonable expectation of privacy as a
key component of any decision made to deploy the UAS. Each Unmanned Aircraft System Pilot

85



Sonoma Valley Fire Districts
Fire Policy Manual

Unmanned Aerial System (UAS) Operations

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/10/22, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Sonoma Valley Fire Districts ***DRAFT*** Unmanned Aerial System (UAS) Operations -

6

and Observer shall ensure that operations of the UAS are consistent with Fire District, state, and
federal law.

86



 

Attached Sonoma Valley Fire District  
 

Unmanned Aerial System (UAS) 
 

Operations Manual  
 

 
 
 
 

Steve Akre, Fire Chief - UAS Commander 
 

Trevor Smith, Fire Marshal - UAS Supervisor 
 
 

Revised: October 23, 2020 
 
 

 

 
87



 
Sonoma Valley Fire District Unmanned Aerial System Operation Manual 

 
Preface 

 
The purpose of this operations manual is to provide members of The Sonoma Valley Fire 
District a set of operational procedures intended to promote the safe, efficient, and lawful 
operation of an Unmanned Aerial System. As such, this handbook will be considered a 
living document and will be subject to modifications as seen fit by the leadership at 
SVFD. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MISSION STATEMENT 

 
88



 
Sonoma Valley Fire District Unmanned Aerial System Operation Manual 

 
The Sonoma Valley Fire & Rescue Authority exists to protect the quality of life for present and future 
generations through interaction with our community, compassionate service and an atmosphere that 
encourages innovation, professionalism, and diversity. 
 
 

FIREFIGHTER CODE OF ETHICS 
 
As a firefighter and member of the Sonoma Valley Fire District, my fundamental duty is to serve the 
community; to safeguard and preserve life and property against the elements of fire and disaster; and 
maintain a proficiency in the art and science of fire engineering. 
 
I will uphold the standards of my profession, continually search for new and improved methods and share 
my knowledge and skills with my contemporaries and successors. 
 
I will not allow personal feelings, nor danger to self, deter me from my responsibilities as a firefighter. 
 
I will at all times, respect the property and rights of all men and women, the laws of my community and 
my country, and the chosen way of life of my fellow citizens. 
 
I recognize the badge of my office as a symbol of public faith, and I accept it as a public trust to be held 
so long as I am true to the ethics of the fire service. I will never use my official position to obtain 
advantages or favors for my friends, my family, or myself. 
 
I will constantly strive to achieve the objectives and ideals, dedicating myself to my chosen profession‚ 
saving of life, fire prevention, and fire suppression. 
 
As a member of the Sonoma Valley Fire District, I accept this self-imposed and self-enforced obligation 
as my responsibility. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
89



 
Sonoma Valley Fire District Unmanned Aerial System Operation Manual 

 
Definitions and Abbreviations 
 
Above Ground Level (AGL): AGL is the altitude expressed in the actual number of feet measured above 
the ground. 
 
Air Traffic Control (ATC): Manages traffic from the airport to a radius of 3 to 30 miles. 
Provide pilots taxiing and take off instructions, air traffic clearance, and advice based on their own 
observations and experience. Maintains separation between landing and departing aircraft, transfers 
control of aircraft to the en-route center controllers when the aircraft leave their airspace, and receives 
control of aircraft on flights coming into their airspace. 
 
Certificate of Authorization (COA): Issued by the FAA and grants permission to fly within specific 
boundaries and parameters. 
 
Federal Aviation Administration (FAA): Federal agency in the United States and part of the 
Department of Transportation. The FAA regulates U.S. civil aviation, U.S. commercial space 
transportation, operates control towers, builds, installs, and maintains electronic aids to navigation, and 
registers all pilots and aircrafts in the United States. 

 
Incident Commander (IC): The IC is responsible for directing and/or controlling resources by virtue of 
explicit legal, agency, or delegated authority. The IC develops incident objectives and manages all 
incident operations. The IC sets priorities and defines the ICS organization for the particular response. 

 
Instrument Flight Rules (IFR): Under IFR, ATC exercises positive control (i.e., separation of all air 
traffic within designated airspace) over all aircraft in controlled airspace, and is primarily responsible for 
aircraft separation. Aircraft operating under IFR must meet minimum equipment requirements. Pilots 
must also be specially certified and meet proficiency requirements. IFR aircraft fly assigned routes and 
altitudes, and use a combination of radio navigation aids and vectors from ATC to navigate. 

 
National Airspace System (NAS): The NAS is made up of a network of air navigation facilities, ATC 
facilities, airports, technology, and appropriate rules and regulations that are needed to operate the system. 

 
Navigable Airspace: FAA controlled airspace classified as: A, B, C, D, E, and G. 
 
Notice to Airmen (NOTAM): A NOTAM is time critical information concerning the establishment, 
condition, or change in any component in the National Air Space (NAS). The NOTAM provides 
knowledge that is essential to personnel concerned with flight operations in designated areas. NOTAMs 
may be filed as a temporary change to the NAS as they were not known in advance to publish on 
aeronautical charts or other operational publications. 

 
Pilot:  Any member who has successfully met the criteria outlined by the UAS Commander for full flight 
duty. 
 
 
 

 
90



 
Sonoma Valley Fire District Unmanned Aerial System Operation Manual 

 
Pilot-in-Command (PIC) (aka Remote Pilot in Command): A person exercising control over 
unmanned aircraft during flight. The pilot will be ultimately responsible for the operation and solely 
responsible for the input of commands/piloting during flight. The pilot will be qualified in the operation 
of the UAS by maintaining currency as required by the FAA COA. The pilot must meet standards 
required by the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA), including successful completion of basic 
knowledge exam and vetting by the Transportation Security Administration. Pilots are authorized to 
evaluate and accept or decline any mission or portion thereof due to safety concerns. See Also Unmanned 
Aircraft Operator 

 
Unmanned Aerial Vehicle (UAV): A powered, aerial vehicle that uses aerodynamic forces to provide 
vehicle lift, can fly autonomously or be piloted remotely, and can be expendable or recoverable. Refers 
more specifically to the unmanned aerial vehicle itself. 

 
Unmanned Aerial System (UAS): Consists of an unmanned aircraft weighing less than 55 lbs., the 
command system, a secure control link, camera, and other related safety support equipment, including 
ground control base stations and specialty vehicles designed to support unmanned flight operations. 

 
Unmanned Aerial System Crewmember: A Pilot in Command, Visual Observer, or other persons 
assigned UAS duties for the purpose of flight. 
 
Unmanned Aircraft Operator: A person exercising control over unmanned aircraft during flight. The 
pilot will be ultimately responsible for the operation and solely responsible for the input of 
commands/piloting during flight. The pilot will be qualified in the operation of the UAS by maintaining 
currency as required by the FAA COA. The pilot must meet standards required by the Federal Aviation 
Administration (FAA), including successful completion of basic knowledge exam and vetting by the 
Transportation Security Administration. Pilots are authorized to evaluate and accept or decline any  
mission or portion thereof due to safety concerns. See Also Pilot-in-Command (PIC) 

 
Visual Line of Sight (VLOS): Visual contact between PIC or VO and a UAS sufficient to maintain safe 
operational control of the aircraft, known location, and be able to scan the airspace in which it is operating 
to see and avoid other aircraft or objects aloft or on the ground. 
 
Visual Observer (VO): The Visual Observer is equally responsible for the visual observation of the UAS 
while in-flight. The VO shall alert the PIC of any conditions (obstructions, terrain, structures, air traffic, 
weather, etc.) that may affect the safety of flight. The VO is responsible for all on scene radio 
communications between the IC or designee and the PIC, in addition to all aviation related 
communications required by the FAA. The VO shall be certified by successful completion of an approved 
training course outlined by the UAS Committee. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

91



 
Sonoma Valley Fire District Unmanned Aerial System Operation Manual 

 
Table of Contents 

 
Preface 
 
Mission Statement 
 
Firefighter Code of Ethics  
 
Definitions and Abbreviations 
 
Section 1- Administration 

Preface 
Operations Manual 
Organization 
Personnel 
Facilities 
Inspection, Testing, Maintenance  
Miscellaneous 

 
Section 2- Safety 

Preface 
Safety Policy 
Safety Awareness 
Emergency Procedures 
Medical Factors 

 
Section 3- Training 

Preface 
Instructors 
Training Policies 
Initial Training 
Pilot Training 
VO Training 
Recurrent Training 
Miscellaneous 

 
Section 4- General Operating Procedures 

Preface 
General Deployment Rules 
Deployment Rules- Internal 
Deployment Rules- External 
Pre-flight 
Weather 
Post-flight 
Documentation 

 
92



 
Sonoma Valley Fire District Unmanned Aerial System Operation Manual 

 
UAS end of life procedures 
 

Section 5- Appendices 
Preface 
SVFD UAS Pre-flight Risk Assessment & Checklist  
Pre-flight Checklist 
Post-flight Checklist 
Emergency Procedures 
Lost Link 
Lost Communications  
PAVE Checklist  
IMSAFE Checklist 
Decision Model 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
93



 
Sonoma Valley Fire District Unmanned Aerial System Operation Manual 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Section 1 

 
Administration  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
94



 
Sonoma Valley Fire District Unmanned Aerial System Operation Manual 

 
 

1.1 Preface 
The following procedures are intended to promote the safe, efficient, and lawful operation of Sonoma 
Valley Fire District’s Unmanned Aircraft System (UAS). 
 
1.2 Operations Manual 
The operations manual is written to satisfy the following criteria 
 

● The policies and procedures contained in this manual are issued by the authority of the Fire Chief 
of SVFD. As such, it is an official document of the Sonoma Valley Fire District. 

 
● This manual is not intended to be all-inclusive, but serve as a supplement to other department 

guidelines, FAA regulations, a COA, and the aircraft manufacturer’s approved user manual. 
 

● This manual has been written to address UAS operations as they existed when it was drafted. The 
manual will be reviewed and updated in the same manner and time frame as other programs at 
SVFD. Any changes to the manual will be communicated as currently dictated by District policy. 

 
● A copy of the manual will be issued to each person having UAS responsibilities and will be 

posted on the G drive so all SVFD personnel may have access to it. 
 
1.3 Organization 
 
The UAS unit shall be composed of those personnel approved by the UAS Committee and the Fire Chief. 
Personnel include pilots, observers, those contributing or have an assignment to the UAS program. 
 

● The UAS unit will be composed of trained SVFD personnel and members of the community who 
operate on a voluntary basis. 

 
1.4 Personnel 
 
1.4.1 UAS Committee: The UAS committee will consist of the UAS Commander, UAS Supervisor and 
three to five members of the UAS Program. 
 

Responsibilities: 
 

● Selection of UAS Program members 
● Development of training modules and Position Task Book (PTB) 
● Equipment evaluation and purchasing (present and future) 
● Unmanned Aircraft System Operations Manual 
● Budget maintenance 

 
1.4.2 UAS Program Commander: The commander is responsible for the overall direction and  
performance of the UAS program and will exercise command and control over both. 
 

 
95



 
Sonoma Valley Fire District Unmanned Aerial System Operation Manual 

 
1.4.3 UAS Supervisor: The supervisor is responsible for the day-to-day supervision of the UAS program.  
In addition, the supervisor will serve as the supervisor to any community volunteers involved in the  
program. 

 
Responsibilities: 

 
● Maintain all training, flight, and maintenance records for each pilot, observer, and each 

individual airframe 
● Maintain contact with the FAA and familiarity with applicable FAA regulations 
● Maintain proficiency on all UAS operated by the UAS program 
● Obtain and maintain an FAA remote pilot certificate with a small UAS rating 
● Ensuring Inspections, testing and maintenance occurs on all UAS equipment 

 
1.4.4 Pilot in Command: The PIC is the sole person responsible for the safety and  operation of the UAS  
during a mission or training. 

 
Responsibilities: 
 

● Have an understanding of, and comply with, FAA regulations applicable to the airspace 
where the UAS will operate 

● Have an understanding of, and comply with, the manufacturer's user manual 
● Maintain proficiency on each of the airframes in the UAS program 
● Obtain and maintain an FAA remote pilot certificate with a small UAS rating 

 
1.4.5  Visual Observer: The VO is crucial in ensuring the UAS operates in a safe manner. 

 
Responsibilities: 
 

● The ability to effectively communicate with the PIC, the IC, and manned aircraft (if 
applicable) via radio or face-to-face (whichever is most appropriate) 

● Have an understanding of, and comply with, regulations concerning right of way rules, 
operating near other aircraft, careless operation, etc. 

● Knowledge of, and ability to use, UAS support equipment (radio, camera, charging 
station, etc.) 

● NOTAM filing (if applicable) 
 
 

1.5 Facilities  
 
UAS Operations will be based out of Sonoma Valley Fire District Headquarters Station # 1 -  
630 2nd St. W, Sonoma CA 96576 
 
1.5.1 The UAS Committee will determine which apparatus will be equipped with the UAS equipment.  
 
 

 
96



 
Sonoma Valley Fire District Unmanned Aerial System Operation Manual 

 
1.6 Inspection, Testing, Maintenance 
 
1.6.1 Daily check A daily check will be performed on all UAS equipment to ensure a state of  
Readiness. 
 

● Each pilot is responsible for their own daily check. 
 

1.6.2 Each airframe and UAS component will be maintained according to the manufacturer’s  
recommendations. It shall be the responsibility of each pilot to assess the equipments records to ensure  
compliance with inspection, testing and maintenance requirements.  
 

● The UAS Supervisor shall maintain the responsibility for scheduled inspections, testing and 
maintenance.  

 
1.6.3 All UAS program members are equally responsible for maintaining, cleaning, and securing the  
UAS equipment. 
 
 
1.7 Miscellaneous  
 
1.7.1 Media: Inquiries from the news media will be forwarded to the on-duty battalion chief and/or the 
UAS Commander. Members of the UAS program will follow currently established department policy 
regarding interactions and inquiries from the media.  
 
1.7.2 Complaints: Complaints, concerns, irregularities, etc. from the public and/or other agencies will be 
referred to the on-duty battalion chief. The battalion chief will inform the UAS Supervisor at their 
discretion. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
97



 
Sonoma Valley Fire District Unmanned Aerial System Operation Manual 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Section 2 
 

Safety 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
98



 
Sonoma Valley Fire District Unmanned Aerial System Operation Manual 

 
2.1 Preface  
The Sonoma Valley Fire District is committed to maintaining a safe and healthy workplace. Above all  
else, the primary concern on every operation, regardless of the nature, is safety. 
 
2.1 Safety Policy  
The above goal is achieved through the following: 

 
● The ongoing pursuit of an accident-free workplace, including no harm to people, equipment, property, or 

the environment 
 

● A culture of open reporting of all safety hazards in which management will not initiate disciplinary action 
against personnel who, in good faith, disclose a hazard or safety occurrence due to unintentional conduct 

 
● Support for safety training and awareness programs 

 
● Conduct regular audits of safety policies, procedures, and practices 

 
● Monitor the UAS community to ensure best safety practices are incorporated into the organization 

 
 

2.2.1 It is the duty of every member within the UAS program to contribute to the goal of continued safe 
 operations. This contribution may come in many forms and includes always operating in the safest 
 manner practicable and never taking unnecessary risks. Any safety hazard, whether procedural,  

operational, or maintenance related should be identified as soon as possible. Any suggestions in the  
interest of safety should be made through the UAS program chain of command. 

 
2.2.2 If any member observes or has knowledge of an unsafe or dangerous act committed by another  
member, the UAS Commander is to be notified immediately. 

 
 

2.3 Safety Awareness  
In regards to safety, all members of the UAS program are safety officers and are responsible for the  
following: 
 

● Ensure all flight personnel understand applicable regulatory requirements, standards, and 
organizational safety policies and procedures 
 

● Observe and control safety systems by monitoring all operations 
 

● Review standards and practices of departmental personnel as they impact operational safety 
 

● Communicate all reported safety related problems and the corrective action(s) taken. If there were 
any in-flight problems, lessons learned, and the proper procedures for handling the problem 
should be shared and discussed 
 
 
 

 
99



 
Sonoma Valley Fire District Unmanned Aerial System Operation Manual 

 
● Copy and circulate pertinent safety information 

 
● Copy and circulate emergency safety bulletins 

 
● Place electronic copies of any safety information to the UAS Program file in the shared drive 

 
 

2.4 Emergency Procedures 
Members will follow established procedures and policies with regard to emergency notification(s). 
Further information on safety related matters is located in the Sonoma Valley Fire District Policies and 
Procedures Manual. Also refer to appendices in this document for lost link, lost communications, and 
emergency procedures documents.  
 
2.5 Medical Factors  
The health of the flight crew is paramount and any member of the UAS program can stand down if they 
feel they are not able to perform their duties to the highest level. 
 
2.5.1 A self-assessment of physical condition shall be made by all flight crew members during pre-flight  
Activities. 
 
2.5.2 No member shall act as a PIC or a VO within eight hours after consumption of any alcoholic  
beverage. (in compliance with Part 107) 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
100



 
Sonoma Valley Fire District Unmanned Aerial System Operation Manual 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Section 3 
 

Training 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

101



 
Sonoma Valley Fire District Unmanned Aerial System Operation Manual 

 
3.1 Preface  

To ensure the continued safe operation of the UAS, high levels of competency must be achieved  
and maintained. Proficiency, in both academic knowledge and practical skills, is best realized  
through regular training. 

 
3.2 Instructors  
 
3.2.1 The primary instructor will be the UAS Supervisor. Through training modules established by the  

UAS Committee, the UAS Supervisor will conduct training based on the varying needs of the  
program. 

 
3.2.2 Duties of instructing new members shall fall upon those who have the most flight time and  

knowledge of UAS operations. Instructors will be designated based on experience and  
competency with the UAS operation and approved by the UAS Commander or designee.  

 
 

3.3 Training Policies  
 
3.3.1 All members will have access to the monthly and yearly training plan through Target Solutions. 
 
3.3.2 Training plans will be developed jointly by the SVFD Training Division and the UAS 
Committee.  

Training will be implemented by the UAS instructors. 
 
3.3.3 Training for members who have been cleared for full flight duty may conduct their own training  

by utilizing the chain of command. 
 
3.3.4 All deployments and/or exercises will be documented and counted toward a members training. 
 
3.3.5 Each member of the UAS program has the responsibility to verify their training file is accurate  

and up-to-date with all pertinent information. 
 
 
3.4 Initial Training 
 
3.4.1 Unmanned Aircraft Operators in the SVFD UAS division have undergone In person training  

conducted by Enterprise UAS, and Additional Part 107 preparation “ Drone Pilot Ground School  
- FAA Part 107 Test Prep & Training Course.  

 
● All Unmanned Aircraft Operators must possess a valid FAA Part 107 License.  

 
 

 
 
 

 
102



 
Sonoma Valley Fire District Unmanned Aerial System Operation Manual 

 
 
.3.5 Pilot Training 
 
3.5.1 A member is authorized to conduct flight operations as the PIC when the following criteria has  
 

been met - As of October 2020 The SVFD does not intend on adding pilots to the UAS team. All  
current pilots have been certified under the Initial training standard. In the event the SVFD needs  
to add additional pilots the below requirements will be implemented.  

 
● PIC task book completion 
● Minimum flight hours on each airframe as determined by the UAS Committee 

 
3.5.1.1 Any member that has the status of ‘pilot’ may act as a VO while the PIC is at the controls of the  

UAS. 
 
 
3.6 VO Training 
 
3.6.1 Following the completion of the required training approved by the Fire District’s Training 
Division, authorized personnel may serve in the role of Visual Observer. 
 
 
3.7 Recurrent Training 
 
3.7.1 All members shall maintain proficiency in their pilot/VO abilities. Members who do not have any  

documented training or flight time within 90 days of their previous operation/training/exercise,  
must meet with the UAS Supervisor before they can be returned to full flight status. 

 
 
3.8 Miscellaneous 
 
3.8.1 All requests for training shall be approved through the member’s chain of command. 
 
3.8.3 Unless approval is obtained through the chain of command, overtime will not be authorized for  

training. 
 
3.8.4 Training shall only be conducted at approved locations as provided by written agreement, training  

policy, and any current COA. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
103



 
Sonoma Valley Fire District Unmanned Aerial System Operation Manual 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Section 4 
 

General Operating Procedures  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
104



 
Sonoma Valley Fire District Unmanned Aerial System Operation Manual 

 
 
4.1 Preface 

Deployment of the UAS in the safest and most efficient manner is the purpose of this section  
and the goal of the UAS program. 

 
 
4.2 General Deployment Rules 
 
4.2.1 SVFD’s UAS will be given the designator of “Drone 1” during all flights. Subsequent Drones  

deployed will be given “Drone 2” and so on. When operating with other agencies (who have  
additional UAS deployed) the designator “Sonoma Drone 1” may need to be utilized for clarity.  
This designator is subject to change at any time as determined by the IC, Operations, or the UAS  
Supervisor. 

 
4.2.2 A minimum of one pilot and one observer are required for all deployments. 
 

● 4.2.3 No pilot may act as a PIC for more than 10 hours in any 24-hour period. 
 
4.2.4 Requests for deployment can be made at any time during the day or night. (if applicable waivers  

or COA’s are in place) It is the responsibility of the Unmanned Aircraft Operator to determine if  
the flight is allowed.  

 
4.2.5 All requests for UAS assistance will be made through one of the following 
 

● The on-duty Battalion Chief 
● The UAS Commander or Supervisor  
● Sonoma County Fire Investigation Task-Force 

 
4.2.6 Requests for deployment will be prioritized in a manner that has life safety as the main objective. 
 
4.2.7 Rules, regulations, policies, and procedures in place for flights within SVFD’s jurisdiction will  

remain as such should the UAS provide mutual aid to an allied agency. 
 
4.2.8 The pilot is ultimately responsible for the UAS operation and their authority is absolute. 
 
4.2.9 No member of SVFD (or other entity), regardless of rank, may order a pilot to: 

● Accept a mission 
● Fly outside of FAA, COA, or manufacturer’s parameters 
● Violate any rules or regulations that the PIC feels would put first responders, members of  

the public, or the flight team at a greater risk than is normally assumed with flight  
operations 

 
 
 

 
105



 
Sonoma Valley Fire District Unmanned Aerial System Operation Manual 

 
 
4.2.9.1 Should the pilot decline a mission, the pilot must make a written  declaration outlining the 
reason(s) why the mission was not accepted and submit the draft to the on-duty battalion chief, the UAS 
Commander, and the UAS Coordinator. 

 
4.3 Deployment Rules- Internal 

 
4.3.1 When the need for the UAS becomes apparent, the on-duty battalion chief will take the  

appropriate steps to make contact with a UAS pilot. 
 

● Requests for UAS deployments will be made through the on duty SVFD Battalion Chief. 
● The Battalion Chief will gather information pertaining to the mission and contact the Pilot in 

Command to notify him/her of the mission and all pertinent information. 
● The Pilot in Command will determine if the UAS can be deployed safely and practically and will 

either accept or decline the mission. 
 

4.3.2 The pilot will screen the request based on the following criteria 
 

● Is the proposed mission of the UAS within the capabilities of the equipment and personnel to 
perform? 

● Does the proposed mission fall within FAA and any issued FAA Waivers or COA requirements? 
● Does the proposed mission fall within department rules, regulations, policies, and procedures? 
● Can the UAS be deployed safely given the current and future weather conditions? 

 
4.3.3 If the mission is accepted, the following will take place when the pilot arrives on scene (if not  

already present) 
 

● The IC and the pilot will conduct a face to face briefing 
● The pilot will make an on-scene assessment of the conditions and determine if the UAS can  

fulfill the requested goals of the mission 
● The IC will contact PSC and request a secondary radio channel to be used for flight team  

communications when needed. 
● Normal pre-flight operations will be initiated including the filing of a NOTAM when required by  

FAA Part 107 requirements or any current waivers or COA. 
 
 

4.4 Deployment Rules- External 
 

4.4.1 Part 107 and any valid FAA waivers / COA outline the parameters of where and when SVFD’s UAS may 
 operate. 

 
4.4.2 Requests from allied agencies (outside of the Sonoma Valley Fire District) will follow the same  

procedures as internal requests. 
 
 

 
106



 
Sonoma Valley Fire District Unmanned Aerial System Operation Manual 

 
4.4.3 Should the mutual aid request come through REDCOM, the on-duty battalion chief will be notified and 

gather as much information as possible on the nature of the mission. 
 
4.4.4 The pilot will screen the request based on the criteria outlined in 4.3.2 of this manual. 
 
4.4.5 The on-duty battalion chief will inform the requesting party of the pilot’s decision to accept or decline  

the mission. 
 
4.4.6 The procedures outlined in 4.3.2 of this manual will remain in place regardless of the operating area or 

mission type. 
 
 
4.5 Pre-flight 
 
4.5.1 Before launch, a thorough pre-flight inspection must be completed by the designated PIC and VO. 
 
4.5.2 The pre-flight checklist will be utilized to the fullest extent. 
 
4.5.3 A pre-flight checklist can be located in Section 5.2 of this manual. 
 
 
4.6 Weather 
 
4.6.1 Before launch, a thorough check of the weather will be conducted and all members of the flight team  

will be made aware of the findings. 
 
4.6.2 Weather information can be obtained through two primary means 

•An anemometer 
•FAA approved weather resources 

 
4.6.3 Weather information obtained during the pre-flight phase will be documented in the flight log. 
 
 
4.7 Post-flight 
 
4.7.1 After landing, a thorough post-flight inspection must be completed by the designated PIC and VO. 
 
4.7.2 The post-flight checklist that will be utilized to the fullest extent. 
 
4.7.3 A post-flight checklist can be located in Section 5.3 of this manual. 
 
 

 
 
 
 

107



 
Sonoma Valley Fire District Unmanned Aerial System Operation Manual 

 
4.8 Documentation 
 
4.8.1 A flight log form will be completed following every mission or training exercise. 
 
4.8.2 The flight log can be found “Insert weblink here” 
 
4.8.2 All pictures and videos captured during a mission will be stored in accordance with  

Sonoma Valley Fire  District’s UAS and Data Retention Policy. 
 
4.8.3 Materials not required to be retained can be deleted at the discretion of the UAS Commander, the UAS  

Supervisor, or the Training Officer. 
 

4.8.3.1 Pictures and videos captured during training fall under this category. 
 

4.8.4 Data Retention and Processing (video / digital media files)  
Upon completion of each UAS mission, the recorded data shall be reviewed and evaluated for 
evidentiary value by the UAS Commander or authorized designee. Data of identifiable individuals 
captured during a UAS mission shall not be retained unless there is reasonable suspicion that 
evidence of criminal activity is present. All retained data shall be maintained or destroyed pursuant 
to the Sonoma Valley Fire District's Records retention and evidence policies and in compliance 
with applicable laws and regulations  
 
4.8.4.1 Unauthorized use, duplication, and/or distribution of UAS digital media files is prohibited.  
Personnel shall not make copies of any UAS digital media files for their personal use and are  
prohibited from using recording devices (such as a personal camera, tablets, or smartphone) or any  
secondary video camera to capture UAS systems media including the retention of video cached on  
the web.  All recorded digital media; images and audio are property of the Sonoma Valley Fire District  
and shall not be copied, released or disseminated in any form or manner outside the parameters of this  
policy without the expressed written consent of the Fire Chief. 
 

● Departmental requests for a UAS digital media, including requests from the District 
Attorney’s Office or City Attorney’s Office, shall be forwarded as a written request via 
email, to the Sonoma Valley Fire District, with sufficient information to locate the UAS 
camera system file. 

● Non-Departmental requests for a UAS digital media shall be accepted and processed in 
accordance with Federal, State, and local laws, and Fire Departmental policy (discovery, 
media inquiries, subpoenas, Public Records Act requests, etc.). 

● When practical, District personnel will be advised prior to any release of UAS digital 
media files under the California Public Records Act (CPRA). 
 

 
4.9 UAS End of service procedures 
 
4.9.1 When a UAS has been determined to no longer be of use or airworthy it will be decommissioned and  

tagged as "decommissioned" 
 

108



 
Sonoma Valley Fire District Unmanned Aerial System Operation Manual 

 
4.9.2 Department representative with insurance authority will be notified to remove unit from District  

insurance policy 
 

4.9.3 Manufacturer will be notified so that any unlock applied to the airframe will be cancelled.  
For DJI this will occur through appropriate notification to the Qualified Entities Program 
Representative. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
109



 
Sonoma Valley Fire District Unmanned Aerial System Operation Manual 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Section 5 
 

Appendices 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

110



 
Sonoma Valley Fire District Unmanned Aerial System Operation Manual 

 
 
5.1 Preface 

Additional information, used to supplement Sections 1-4, can be found in this section. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
111



 
Sonoma Valley Fire District Unmanned Aerial System Operation Manual 

 
5.2 Pre-Flight Risk Assessment & Checklist 
 

 
 

  
 
 

 
112



 
Sonoma Valley Fire District Unmanned Aerial System Operation Manual 

 
5.2.1 Preflight Checklist Manufacturer Specific 

5.2.2  Preflight Checklist General  
 

WEATHER & SITE SAFETY CHECK 
Chance of precipitation less than 10% 
Wind speed under 15 knots (less than 20 mph) 
Cloud base at least 500 feet 
Visibility at least 3 statute miles (SM) 
If flying at dawn / dusk, double-check civil twilight hours 
Establish take-off, landing, and emergency hover zones 
Potential for electromagnetic interference? 
Look for towers, wires, buildings, trees, or other obstructions 
Look for pedestrians and/or animals and set up safety perimeter if needed 
Discuss flight mission with other crew members if present 
 
VISUAL AIRCRAFT / SYSTEM INSPECTION 
Registration number is displayed properly and is legible 
Look for abnormalities -- aircraft frame, propellers, motors, undercarriage 
Look for abnormalities -- gimbal, camera, transmitter, payloads, etc. 
Gimbal clamp and lens caps are removed 
Clean lens with microfiber cloth 
Attach propellers, battery/fuel source, and insert SD card / lens filters 
 
POWERING UP 
Turn on transmitter / remote control and open up DJI Go 4 app 
Turn on aircraft 
Verify established connection between transmitter and aircraft 
Position antennas on transmitter toward the sky 
 

 
113



 
Sonoma Valley Fire District Unmanned Aerial System Operation Manual 

 
Verify display panel / FPV screen is functioning properly 
Calibrate Inertial Measurement Unit (IMU) as needed 
Calibrate compass before every flight 
Verify battery / fuel levels on both transmitter and aircraft 
Verify that the UAS has acquired GPS location from at least six satellites 

 
TAKING OFF 
Take-off to eye-level altitude for about 10-15 seconds 
Look for any imbalances or irregularities 
Listen for abnormal sounds 
Pitch, roll, and yaw to test control response and sensitivity 
Check for electromagnetic interference or other software warnings 
Do one final check to secure safety of flight operations area 
Proceed with flight mission 
 
 
5.3 Post Flight Checklist  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
114



 
Sonoma Valley Fire District Unmanned Aerial System Operation Manual 

 

 
 
 
https://www.dji.com/matrice-200-series-v2/info#specs. - Matrie 200 V2 specs  
https://www.dslrpros.com/night-operations-red-green-navigation-strobe-light-kit.html. - Light 
package 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
115

https://www.dji.com/matrice-200-series-v2/info#specs
https://www.dslrpros.com/night-operations-red-green-navigation-strobe-light-kit.html


 
Sonoma Valley Fire District Unmanned Aerial System Operation Manual 

 
5.4 Emergency Procedures  
 
Personnel flying the UAS will first and foremost be trained that in any emergency situation, the safety of 
persons on the ground and in the air is number one. The following are emergency procedures and each 
will be documented with an emergency checklist for crew to review. 
 

● Fire 
❖ UAS will be flown away from people and property until a safe landing location can be 

found. A fire extinguisher and first aid kit will be located at the mission site. 
 

● Loss of Link 
❖ Onboard system will execute lost link protocol by either landing immediately or returning 

to the launch point and landing. 
 

● Line of Sight lost 
❖ In the event that both crew members lose sight of the aircraft the pilot will initiate a 

Return-To-Home on the remote control. The Return-To-Home protocol is identical to the 
Loss of Link protocol. Once visual contact with the aircraft is reestablished the pilot will 
take-back the aircraft using the remote control. 

 
● Loss of Engine 

❖ During an engine failure UAS flight cannot be maintained and the UAS will make an 
uncontrolled landing. An announcement will be made to all crew members of the loss of 
the flight of the aircraft and to watch for the landing site. One crew member will bring a 
fire extinguisher to the landing site in case of fire. 

 
● Unusual Attitude 

❖ Onboard stabilization gyros will be allowed to level aircraft before control is resumed by 
ground control. 

 
In the unlikely event of an emergency involving the aircraft and person on the ground, the flight crew 
(PIC and Observer) shall maintain a list of applicable numbers (EMS, Dispatch, ATC) for emergency 
contact. The flight crew as members of the SVFD are also licensed EMT’s and Paramedics additionally 
trained in CPR and can render medical assistance. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
116



 
Sonoma Valley Fire District Unmanned Aerial System Operation Manual 

 
5.5 Lost Link Procedures 
 
1. Lost Link Procedures: 
 

a. In the event of a lost link, the UA must initiate a flight maneuver that ensures landing  of the 
aircraft. Lost Link airborne operations shall be predictable and shall remain within the defined 
operating area filed in the NOTAM for that flight operation. In the event that the UA could 
potentially enter controlled airspace, the PIC will immediately contact the appropriate ATC 
facility having jurisdiction over the controlled airspace to advise them of the UAS’s last known 
altitude, speed, direction of flight and estimated flight time remaining and the Proponent’s action 
to recover the UA. 

 
b. The sUA is preconfigured / programmed in the event of a Lost Link condition to stop forward 
flight and attempt to regain link to the remote operated by the PIC. If the link is not re-established 
the UA is programmed to initiate a Return to Home maneuver. If link is not re-established the 
PIC will also initiate a manual Return to Home procedure by activation the Return to Home 
function on the UA’s remote. 

 
c. If the link is reestablished the PIC will take control of the UA and continue the operation or 
maneuver the UA back to the launch location if safe to do so. If link is intermittent the PIC will 
immediately land the UA in a safe location. 

 
d. Once the UA has returned to home or recovered, the UA will be inspected for causes of the lost 
link condition and necessary repairs will be made prior to any future flights. 

 
e. All lost link events will be documented along with any findings of causes of these lost link 
events. 

 
2. Lost Visual Line of Sight: 
 

a. If the VO loses sight of the UA the VO must notify the PIC immediately. If the UA is visually 
reacquired promptly, the mission may continue. If not, the PIC will immediately execute lost link 
procedures. 

 
3. Loss of Communications: 
 

a. If communication is lost between the PIC and the VO(s), the PIC must execute the lost link 
procedures  

 
 
 
Please refer to UAS Lost Communications Procedures for additional information on this topic.  
 
 
 

 
117



 
Sonoma Valley Fire District Unmanned Aerial System Operation Manual 

 
 
5.6 Lost Communications Procedure  
 
 
1. Loss of Communications between the Pilot in Command and Air Traffic Control If required, the PIC 
will communicate with ATC through use of two way radio communications or a cellular phone based on 
the agreement between ATC and the PIC. In the event the PIC is unable to establish communications, the 
PIC will immediately land the UA until communications can be regained. In all cases, when during Loss 
of Communications there is concern for people or property in the air or on the ground the PIC will 
immediately land the aircraft. 
 
 
2. Loss of Communications between the Observer and the Pilot in Command The PIC and Observer will 
be collocated during operations for this COA and communications will be through direct  communication. 
However, if the observer and the PIC are not co-located where verbal communication is not possible, the 
following communication tools will be utilized: 
 

● Hand held radio 
● Voice actuated headsets 
● Cellular phone 
● Hand Signals (may be used solely or in conjunction with the communication 

equipment) 
 
If communication is lost and cannot be re-established the UA will immediately land  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
118



 
Sonoma Valley Fire District Unmanned Aerial System Operation Manual 

 

5.7 The PAVE checklist 

Pilots are familiar with acronyms, and the PAVE checklist is an important personal minimums 
checklist for pilots to use during the preflight planning stage of a flight. The letters of the PAVE acronym 
stand for different risks associated with flying: personal, aircraft, environment and external pressures. 

 

As part of the pre-flight risk management process, potential risk factors should be identified and 
the pilot should decide what his or her personal minimums for flight should be based on his or her own 
self-assessment. Every pilot will have different minimums based on their own flying experiences, in 
addition to other factors such as health habits and tolerance for stress. 

 

Keep in mind that a pilot’s personal minimums will change over time as he or she becomes more 
comfortable in a particular airplane or environment. But personal minimums should never be modified or 
reduced in order to takeoff before a thorough risk assessment has been completed. 

 

Personal: Personal minimums analyze both the health and experience of the pilot. A deeper view can be 
found using the I’M SAFE checklist. This is taught early in flight training and is used throughout a pilot’s 
professional career to assess their overall readiness for flight when it comes to illness, medication, stress, 
alcohol, fatigue, and emotion. 

 

Some personal questions a pilot should ask include: Did you get enough sleep to function optimally? How 
is your health? Have you been ill lately or taking any medications? How many flight hours have you 
logged in the particular aircraft you are flying? How many flight hours have you flown in the past week, 
month and year? 

 

A ircraft: Pilots should determine and ensure that their plane is airworthy. Was it inspected recently? Do 
you have enough fuel for your journey? Are you comfortable with the weight, balance and performance of 
the aircraft? Do you know the aircraft’s limitations? Do you have the most up-to-date GPS and charts? 
 

Environment: These questions include: What’s the weather forecast for your path and are you 
comfortable flying in those weather conditions? Have you explored alternative flight path options? Are 
you fluent and comfortable using the instruments? Are you aware of the approaches available and are you 
proficient for each alternative? 

 

Also, did you check PIREPs and NOTAMs? Are you comfortable flying in busy airspace or on edge 
about the air traffic control situation? Does the aircraft have heat or air conditioning? Are you familiar 
with the terrain? 

 

External Pressures: Are you feeling stressed or anxious? Will this flight make you feel that way? Are 
you being pressured to get to your destination quickly? Are your passengers difficult? Are your 
passengers exhibiting unsafe or distracting behavior? Are you being honest with yourself and others about 
your pilot abilities and limitations? 
With the PAVE checklist, pilots have a simple way to remember each personal minimum category to 
identify risk before departure and assist in their decision-making process. 

 
119



 
Sonoma Valley Fire District Unmanned Aerial System Operation Manual 

 
5.8 The IMSAFE Checklist 

 
There is a self-assessment checklist to assist pilots in determining their own physical and mental  
health before a flight. The I'M SAFE Checklist is taught early in flight training and is used  
throughout a pilot's professional career to assess their overall readiness for flight when it comes  
to illness, medication, stress, alcohol, fatigue, and emotion. 

 

I  - Illness 
The FAA requires most pilots to possess a valid medical certificate for flight, but the occasional  
medical exam every five years doesn’t cover illness such as colds and flu. In the interest of safety,  
the FAA does regulate this topic loosely by stating that if a pilot has or develops a known medical  
condition that would prevent him from obtaining a medical certificate, he is prohibited from flying  
as a required crewmember (FAR 61.53). 
 
Also, FAR 91.3 states that the pilot in command is directly responsible for the operation of the flight.  
The pilot alone is responsible for ensuring his health is up to par before taking the controls. 
 
Colds, allergies, and other common illnesses can cause problems for pilots. From sinus pressure to general  
malaise, pilots can easily become more of a risk to the flight than an asset. 
 
Before flying, pilots should think about recent or current illnesses that might affect flight. After the coughing  
and sneezing subside, a pilot might feel well enough to fly but could still have trouble performing the Valsalva 
maneuver, for example, which equalizes the pressure inside of his ears. 

 
M - Medication 
With illness, it's mostly clear when a pilot should or shouldn't fly. But with illness comes medication,  
and all medications should be scrutinized by both the pilot and his or her doctor before taking it. Many  
prescription and over-the-counter medications can be dangerous for a pilot to take before flying. 
 
If medication is necessary, pilots should discuss the specific effects of the medication with an aviation 
 medical examiner to determine if it causes mental or physical impairment that would interfere with the  
safety of flight. Then, pilots need to be aware of residual effects of both short-term and long-term use of  
medications. Even after the medication has been stopped, the effects of it may remain in the body for some time. 
 
So how long should you wait after taking medication to fly? Well, that depends on the drug itself, but the FAA 
recommends waiting until at least five dosage periods have passed. If the medication is taken once a day, for  
example, you would wait five days before flying again. 

 
S  - Stress 
There are at least three kinds of stress that pilots should be aware of: Physiological, environmental and  
psychological stress. 
 
 
 

 
120

https://www.thebalancecareers.com/flight-training-how-to-choose-a-flight-school-282864
https://www.thebalancecareers.com/faq-medical-certificates-for-pilots-282669
https://www.thebalancecareers.com/aviation-medical-exams-disqualifying-medical-conditions-282925
https://www.thebalancecareers.com/aviation-medical-exams-disqualifying-medical-conditions-282925


 
Sonoma Valley Fire District Unmanned Aerial System Operation Manual 

 
 
Physiological stress is stress in the physical sense. It comes from fatigue, strenuous exercise, being out 
 of shape or changing time zones, to name a few. Unhealthy eating habits, illness, and other physical ailments  
are included in this category, too. 

 
 

Environmental stress comes from the immediate surroundings and includes things such as being too hot or too  
cold, inadequate oxygen levels or loud noises. 
 
Psychological stress can be more difficult to identify. This category of stress includes anxiety, social and  
emotional factors and mental fatigue. Psychological stress can occur for many reasons such as divorce, family  
problems, financial troubles or just a change in schedule. 

 
A small level of stress can be a good thing, as it keeps pilots aware and on their toes. But stress can accumulate  
and affect performance. Also, everyone handles stress differently. A source of anxiety for one person might be 
a fun challenge for another person. It's important for pilots to be able to recognize and evaluate their stressors 
so they can mitigate risk. 

 
A  - Alcohol 
There's no doubt that alcohol and flying don't mix. Alcohol abuse affects the brain, eyes, ears, motor skills  
and judgment, all of which are necessary components to safe flight. Alcohol makes people dizzy and sleepy  
which decreases reaction time. 
 
The rules surrounding the use of alcohol while flying are clear: FAR 91.17 prohibits the use of alcohol within  
the 8 hours before flying, while under the influence of alcohol, or with a blood alcohol content of .04% or  
greater. The FAA recommends that pilots wait at least 24 hours after drinking to get behind the controls. 
 
A pilot should remember, though, that they can follow the "8 hours from bottle to throttle" rule and still not  
be fit to fly. Hangovers are dangerous in the cockpit, too, with effects similar to being drunk or ill: Nausea,  
vomiting, extreme fatigue, problems focusing, dizziness, etc. 
 
F - Fatigue 
Pilot fatigue is a difficult problem to address completely, as fatigue affects everyone differently. Some people  
can function well with little sleep; others don't perform well at all without at least ten hours of sleep per night.  
There's no medical way to address the sleep issue with pilots -- each pilot must be responsible for knowing  
his or her limitations. 
 
The effects of fatigue are cumulative, meaning that small sleep deprivations over time can be dangerous for  
pilots. Pilots should also take into account time changes, jet lag and day/night scheduling options when  
managing fatigue. 
 
Although there are FAA regulations and company policies for commercial pilots to help manage fatigue, the  
responsibility for safety lies with the pilot alone. 
 

 
121

https://www.thebalancecareers.com/crm-crew-resource-management-282884
https://www.thebalancecareers.com/the-pilot-fatigue-problem-282930
https://www.thebalancecareers.com/faa-final-rule-pilot-duty-and-rest-requirements-282927


 
Sonoma Valley Fire District Unmanned Aerial System Operation Manual 

 

E - Emotion 
For some people, emotions can get in the way of behaving in a safe, productive manner. Pilots should ask  
themselves if they are in an emotionally stable state of mind before departing. Emotions can be subdued and  
managed most of the time, but they can also resurface easily, especially when faced with a stressful situation. 

 
 
 
Most of the time, this type of self-assessment is hard, but pilots need to try to maintain an objective view of  
themselves to assess their behavior and emotions in a safe way. For example, if a pilot notices that he is  
unusually angry or impatient while preparing for a flight, he may want to reconsider flying. 
 
 

5.9 The DECIDE MODEL 

 

 

 
122



123



124



125



126



127



128


	SCID200803RHB.pdf
	CS200803RHB_190076 Building Permit Submittal.pdf
	Binder1.pdf
	SCID112019RHB.pdf
	SCID112019RHB.pdf

	3453_001.pdf





